
 

 

 
 

WSW Joint Executive/Finance Committee Meeting 
Hybrid Meeting 

December 5, 2023  
3:30 – 5:00 pm 

 
 
3:30   Welcome         Paige Spratt  
 
3:35  Consent Agenda        Paige Spratt  

• Minutes, Contract & Policy Memos *            
          
3:40  Finance         Renny Christopher 

• Finance Committee Minutes *     Barri Blair 

• PY23 Budget Revision *       

• Quarterly Reports 
 
4:05  Board Business        A.D. Simmons 

• Board Member Nomination * 
 
4:15  CEO Update         Miriam Halliday 

• December Board of Directors Meeting Agenda Draft 

• Washington Workforce Association Conference Reflection 

• Economic Security for All – State Funding Update 

• Strategic Planning 2024  

• WSW Team Holiday Time Off Request * 
 
4:55  Open Discussion / Other Items      Paige Spratt 
 
5:00  Adjourn         Paige Spratt 
 
* - Action Required  

NOTES 
   

December 12, 2023 – WSW Board of Directors Meeting, reception following. 
January 24, 2024 – Executive Committee Meeting - Zoom 



 

WSW Executive Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, October 25, 2023 
Page | 1 
 

 
WSW Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 25, 2023 
3:30 p.m. 

Zoom Conference Call 
 
Executive Committee Members Present: Chair Paige Spratt, Vice Chair A.D. Simmons, Adrienne 
Watson, Renny Christopher, Corey Giles, Mark Tishenko, and Monte Constable. 
 
Executive Committee Members Not Present: Councilor Sue Marshall and Ted Sprague. 
 
Staff Members Present:  COO Amy Gimlin, Darcy Hoffman, and Traci Williams. 
 
WELCOME: 
Chair Paige Spratt opened the meeting at 3:30 p.m. and welcomed everyone in attendance.  
 
APPROVALS: 
Having reached quorum, Chair Spratt entertained a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, consisting 
of the Executive Committee minutes held on September 27,2023, Contract Memo, and Policy Memo 
that included; WSW’s Monitoring Policy #2003-5 and WSW’s Career NDWG Policy #3041. 
 
A.D. Simmons moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented, second by Renny Christopher. 
Motion carried. 
 
JOB QUALITY ACADEMY UPDATE: 
WSW’s Director of Business Services, Darcy Hoffman gave the Executive Committee an update around 
the Job Quality Academy and answered questions from the Committee. 
 
Darcy Hoffman and Amy Gimlin also shared that WSW and SWCA will be posting for a shared position 
which each agency will fund 50/50 and will lead the construction sector for WSW. The job posting 
should go live next week and the position has a start date of January 1st. 
 
BOARD BUSINESS: 

• Board Officers 
The Executive Board approved the following slate of officers for a final vote at the December board 
meeting to finish out the remainder of Chair Spratt’s term ending June 30, 2024:  A.D. Simmons, Board 
Chair and Corey Giles, Vice Chair. Paige Spratt will assume the role of Immediate Past Chair in 
accordance with WSW’s Bylaws.  
 
Adrienne Watson moved to approve the slate of board officers for presentation to the full Board at 
the December 12th meeting as presented, second by Renny Christopher. Motion carried with all in 
favor with each elected officer abstaining from their own motion.   
 



 

WSW Executive Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, October 25, 2023 
Page | 2 
 

WSW UPDATE: 
Along with the updates earlier in the meeting with Darcy, COO Amy Gimlin shared pictures of WSW’s 
annual pumpkin carving teambuilding that took place yesterday. The December 5th joint 
Finance/Executive Committee meeting will look to be held hybrid if quorum becomes a concern. 
 
NEW BUSINESS / OTHER ITEMS 
None was forthcoming. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
With nothing further for the good of the order, Chair Spratt entertained a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 3:55 p.m. 
 

 



 

 

CONTRACT MEMO 

DATE: NOVEMBER 29, 2023 

TO: MIRIAM HALLIDAY, WSW CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 WSW EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

FROM: LINDA CZECH, WSW CONTRACTS MANAGER 

RE: CONTRACT UPDATE (OCT-NOV 2023) 

 

WSW modified the following contracts: 

• Equus modified Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) contract to end Basic Food Employment & 
Training (BFET) requirements as of September 30, 2023, and no change in budget of $423,220 extend end 
date to December 31, 2023. 

• Lower Columbia College modified to end Cost Reimbursement contract to move to a Professional Services 
agreement, end date September 30, 2023. 

• Clark College modified to end Cost Reimbursement contract to move to a Professional Services 
agreement, end date September 30, 2023. 

• Washington State University modified to end Cost Reimbursement contract to move to a Professional 
Services agreement, end date September 30, 2023. 

WSW executed the following contracts: 

• Career Team for $900,000 for WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker contract, ending September 30, 2024. 

• Lower Columbia College for $34,800.90 System Liaison Professional Services contract ending June 30, 
2024. 

• Clark College for $37,141 System Liaison Professional Services contract ending June 30, 2024. 

• Washington State University for $43,406.25 System Liaison Professional Services contract ending June 30, 
2024. 

 
WSW notification of grant award/execution: 

• WSW received a grant modification for the Basic Food Employment & Training (BFET) from Department of 
Social & Health Services to decrease amount by -$103,766 for total grant amount of $55,000, end date 
September 30, 2024. 

• WSW received grant award Opioid Disaster Recovery Dislocated Worker Grant (DWG) for $687,000, end 
date September 30, 2025. 

• WSW received a notification of grant award for Economic Security for All (EcSA) Community Reinvestment 
Funds from Employment Security Department for $1,762,986, end date May 31, 2025. 

• WSW received a grant modification for Career National Dislocated Worker Grant from Worksystems, no 
change in total grant amount or end date. 

• WSW received a grant award for American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) from Clark County for $100,000 ending 
December 31, 2024.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



CONTRACT MEMO CONT. 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Board Approval Needed        

• Approval needed for The Community Reinvestment EcSA Career Accelerator Incentive Program with Equus 
Workforce Solutions, contract not to exceed $960,000. Contact ending May 31, 2025, will provide services 
in Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum counties.        

o Fund Incentives incentive payments to Economic Security for All (EcSA) participants who are 
making progress on their career plans with a focus is on Black, Indigenous, and Latinx participants.  

o Help Community Reinvestment EcSA Businesses, with a focus on Black, Latinx, and Indigenous 
owned or operated businesses, to develop business partnerships that lead to training and 
employment opportunities.  



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

POLICY MEMO 

DATE: NOVEMBER 29, 2023 

TO: MIRIAM HALLIDAY, WSW CEO 

 WSW EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

FROM: TRACI WILLIAMS, WSW OFFICE MANAGER/EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: POLICY UPDATES 

 

WSW Supportive Service Policy 3005-10 
 

This was a revision to our Supportive Service Policy. This policy was revised to remove the Youth Incentives 
section out of the policy to allow WSW to write its own Youth Incentives Policy. Revised Supportive Service Policy 
3005-10 is posted for your reference. 
 
Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 1 Executive Committee and Full Board 
notification.  

 

Tier 1 – Minimum 
 

Definition: Minimum revisions consist of grammar, spelling, branding changes, State or Federal mandated 
adjustments, or a new State or Federal mandated policy with no local revisions. These revisions would not 
require Executive or Full Board approval but would be included in a notification memo. 

  

 

WSW Training Policy Handbook – Attachment A 
 

This was a revision to our Training Policy Handbook – Attachment A. This policy was revised to add Next alongside 
WorkSource for participation in CNA funded programs and to clarify short-term vs ITA training in WIOA programs.  

 

Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 3 Executive Committee and Full Board approval.  

 

Tier 3 – Substantial 
 

Definition: Substantial revisions consist of significant revisions to a current policy or a State or Federal 
mandated “new” policy with local revisions made that will affect service delivery. These revisions require 
approval from both the Executive Committee and Full Board.  
 

 
 
 

https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3005-rev-10-supportive-service-policy.pdf
https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3005-rev-10-supportive-service-policy.pdf


DECEMBER 2023 POLICY MEMO  

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

WSW Youth Incentives Policy 3042 
 

This is a new policy for WSW. WSW created this policy to provide guidance on the expected use of incentives for 
youth enrolled in Title I of WIOA to support comprehensive service delivery for recognition and achievement 
directly tied to training activities and work experiences. Other Workforce Development Areas have written a 
similar policy with great success. 
 
Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 3 Executive Committee and Full Board approval.  
 
Tier 3 – Substantial 
 

Definition: Substantial revisions consist of significant revisions to a current policy or a State or Federal 
mandated “new” policy with local revisions made that will affect service delivery. These revisions require 
approval from both the Executive Committee and Full Board.  

 
 



   

  Serving businesses, job seekers and youth in Clark, Cowlitz and Wahkiakum counties. 

805 Broadway, Suite 412 | Vancouver, WA 98660               www.workforcesw.org               360.567.1070 

WSW Finance Committee Meeting Minutes DRAFT 
August 16, 2023 

4:00 p.m. 
Zoom Conference Call 

 
 

Finance Committee Members Present: Renny Christopher, Treasurer, Bob Gustainis, 
Ilona Kirby, and Jim Lucey  
 
Staff Members Present: Barri Blair, Amy Gimlin, and Traci Williams 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:03 PM by Renny Christopher.  
 
Having reached quorum, a motion was made to approve the Finance Committee 
minutes for the meeting held on May 17, 2023, as presented. Ilona Kerby moved to 
approve the minutes as presented, second by Bob Gustainis. Motion carried. 
 

Barri Blair, CFO, presented the PY22 fourth quarter spending and obligations reports as 
of June 30, 2023: 
 

 The WIOA Obligations report was reviewed. All three WIOA funding streams’ 
prior year’s grant allocations are 100% obligated for all funds and will fall off the 
report for next quarter. Current year grants have been obligated in excess of 80% 
as required by the Department of Labor and the Employment Security 
Department with Adult at 96.56%, Dislocated Worker at 84.11%, and Youth at 
88.16%.  
 

 Operational spending for PY22 is at 94.5% of the budget as of June 30, 2023 
and is within budgeted parameters. Unspent funds will carry over to next year.  

 

 WIOA formula contracts list of all contracts that were executed during the PY22 
fiscal year was reviewed. The contracts are categorized into six different types 
with participant training and career services representing the bulk of WSW’s 
investments. Unspent funds will carry over into PY23.  

 

 Grant spending reports were reviewed.   
o Multiple grants have expired as of June 30, 2023 with most of them having 

successful outcomes for participants. 
o CDBG: has been extended through December. 
o Covid Relief grant funds ending June 30 had unspent dollars but 

exceeded performance goals. 
o Ms. Blair asked if a one-page summary report would be helpful that shows 

the current dashboard in a more summarized report. The finance 



   

  Serving businesses, job seekers and youth in Clark, Cowlitz and Wahkiakum counties. 

805 Broadway, Suite 412 | Vancouver, WA 98660               www.workforcesw.org               360.567.1070 

Committee would find that helpful to see grants at a glance, Ms. Blair will 
work on creating a new report.  
 

 Contract spending report was reviewed. These reports will be reviewed in more 
detail by the Economic Mobility Committee. 
 

Other matters were discussed: 
 

 Fiscal has hired a part-time Staff Accountant, Racheal Andersen that will start 
Sept. 5th. 

 Potential funding for July 2023-June 2024 (PY23) was reviewed. 
 The Fiscal audit fieldwork begins December 4, 2023. 
 The next meeting will be scheduled for late November or early December and will 

be a Joint Finance/Executive Committee meeting. Members will be contacted to 
find acceptable dates. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:55 p.m. by Bob Gustainis. 

 

 

 



1 
 

 

 
 

 

 

BUDGET  MEMO   
 

 

DATE:  DECEMBER 5, 2023 

TO:  WSW FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

WSW EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

FROM:  BARRI BLAIR, WSW CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

RE:  WSW 2023‐2024 (PY23) BUDGET REVISION EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2024 

 

The following are highlights of the revised WSW 2023‐2024 (PY23) annual budget. Detailed budget reports and 
worksheets are included in the meeting packet. 

WIOA FUNDING and CONTRACTS 

 
Increased WIOA Formula funding carry‐in, Rapid Response allocation for Dislocated Workers, and a small additional 
allocation from ESD resulted in an 9% increase in available WIOA funding for PY23 after future year reserves and 
holdback for executed contracts was accounted for. The increase in carry‐in was a result of underspending realized 
when actual costs totals for the fiscal year operations and contracts were finalized.    
 

 
 
The WIOA  contracting  budget was increased for PY23 using de‐obligated funds from prior years’ underspent 

contracts. 

 

 

 

 

Item

Proposed 
Budget 
PY23

Approved 
Intitial 
Budget 
PY23

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation
ACP 488,889     516,665     (27,777)      (5%)           

Adult 1,389,157   1,375,725   13,432       1%            

Dislocated Workers 1,219,989   1,006,835   213,154     21%          

Youth 1,540,881   1,349,159   191,722     14%          

Total WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation 4,638,916   4,248,384   390,532     9%            

Proposed 
Budget PY23

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

ADULT New Contracts 886,655         847,169           39,486            5%                 

DISLOCATED WORKER New Contracts 904,277         687,777           216,500          31%               

YOUTH New Contracts 1,040,018       786,565           253,453          32%               

2,830,950       2,321,511        509,439          22%               

ITEM



2 
 

 

 

 

The following table is a summary of current WIOA Formula contracts by category with comparison to the total 

revised contract budget. Youth contracts executed last year for services in the current year are included in the youth 

total. 

 

 

Increased WIOA Formula Funding carry‐in also resulted in an 57.5% increase in dollars available for Operations and 
Reserves after subcontract allowance. 90% of the increase equal to $665,904 is included in reserves for the future 
year. 
 

 
         

NEW FUNDING 

The following sources of funding were added to the revised budget. These figures represent funding for both 

operations and contracting in the current and future years. 

 

TOTAL FUNDING 

Overall funding for the current program year decreased 8% over PY22 and increased 11% over the initial approved 

budget for PY23. 

 

 

 

Adult DW Youth
TOTAL in Contracts 819,859                  813,397                  1,030,469               
Systems Liasons                     112,761                     113,544                       15,411 
Systems Technology                              -                                -                           1,690 
Direct Workforce Development Systems Support                         3,761                         3,787                            578 
Business Services-Quality jobs                       50,317                       50,667                         7,731 
Outreach                       35,825                       36,073                              -   
Participant Training and Career Services                     617,196                     609,326                   1,005,060 
New Contracting  Budget REVISED  886,655 904,277 1,040,018
Contracts budget remaining                       66,796                       90,880                         9,549 

ITEM Proposed Budget 
PY23 Future Years Total

OPIOID NDWG PY23 408,478                    791,522                    1,200,000               
WJI-CGC Sectoral Partnership 228,571                    571,429                    800,000                  
DOL: Future Leaders 97,195                      252,805                    350,000                  
DOC: Incentive 240,088                    411,579                    651,667                  
DOC: Business Serv. & Training 409,434                    701,886                    1,111,320               

Item

Proposed 
Budget PY23

Approved 
Revised Budget 

PY22
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

TOTAL FUNDING 9,410,198       10,260,060       (849,863)     (8%)          8,481,832        928,366      11%             



3 
 

 

EXPENDITURES and RESERVES 

Total expenditures for contracts is up 17% after the increase in carry‐in funding for NEW WIOA contracts and other 

new funding added to the budget. Infrastructure  costs increased 3% attributable to increased WSW costs at the 

NEXT Center. A combination of the loss of contributing partners and increased contractor staff caused the increase.  

A 2% cost of living adjustment for all staff as of January 1, 2024 has been included in the budget.  Also included are 

staff bonuses, reinstated after being removed from the initial budget due to lack of funding. Additional costs related 

to technology updates and required lease accounting changes resulted in a 3% increase in the WSW Coordination and 

Administration costs equal to $68,233. 

Total reserves to be carried forward to PY24 are budgeted at $1,895,291, up 522% from the initial budget. Reserves 

represent current year WIOA funds intended to support operations in the future year and other funds held back from 

multi‐year grant programs which must be self‐supported through the end of their terms.  

 

 

 

 

Item
Proposed 

Budget PY23

Approved 
Revised 
Budget 
PY22

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

TOTAL FEDERAL CONTRACTS 5,165,186       5,583,611    (418,425)         (7%)          4,654,395       510,791         11%             
TOTAL NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS 1,317,666       1,218,611    99,055            8%            876,694          440,972         50%             

TOTAL ALL CONTRACTS 6,482,852    6,802,222  (319,370)       (5%)         5,531,089     951,763       17%            
Total Infrastructure Agreements 426,776         298,438       128,338          43%          413,978          12,798           3%               
Total WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570       2,525,075    (24,506)           (1%)          2,432,336       68,233           3%               

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346    2,823,514  103,832        4%          2,846,314     81,032         3%              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198    9,625,735  (215,537)       (2%)         8,377,403     1,032,795    12%            

RESERVES 1,895,291    1,323,944  571,347        43%        304,913        1,590,378    522%          

Year over Year Change from Initial Approved (June 2023) 
Current Year



6

7

8
9
10
11
12
13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
2324
25
26
27
28
29
30
3132
3334
3536
37
38
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
5253
54
55
56
5758
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
7475
98
99100
101102
103

A B C D E F G H I M N O P Q R T U V W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AI AJ

PY23 PROPOSED  REVISED BUDGET - BY PROGRAM
Fiscal Year - July 1, 2023 Through June 30, 2024

Item Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

PY
23

AC
P

Ad
ul

t

DW Yo
ut

h

TH
RI

VE
 - 

Ec
SA

 
FE

D 
Ro

un
d 

 2

Op
io

id
 N

DW
G 

PY
23

Ca
re

er
 D

W
G 

(W
SI

)

TH
RI

VE
 -E

cS
A 

FE
D 

Ro
un

d 
3

QU
ES

T 
Na

tio
na

l 
DW

 7
57

2-
03

W
JI

-C
GC

 S
ec

to
ra

l 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

Su
m

m
er

w
or

ks
 

DO
L

DO
L 

Fu
tu

re
 

Le
ad

er
s

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Fo
un

da
tio

n

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
Ch

as
e

Ke
y 

Ba
nk

BF
ET

Ot
he

r R
es

er
ve

s

Ci
ty

 o
f V

an
co

uv
er

 -
CD

BG
 fo

r 
Ch

ild
ca

re

Ci
ty

 o
f V

an
co

uv
er

-
Fo

ur
th

 P
la

in
 

Fo
rw

ar
d

Ec
SA

 S
ta

te
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

PY
23

Cl
ar

k 
Co

un
ty

 - 
AR

PA
 R

e-
En

try
 

Fu
nd

in
g

DO
C 

In
ce

nt
ive

DO
C 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Se
rv

. &
 T

ra
in

in
g

N/A N/A N/A N/A 6/30/24 9/30/25 6/30/24 6/30/24 9/30/24 Unexecuted 12/31/25 Unexecuted N/A 9/30/24 N/A N/A N/A 12/31/23 12/31/23 6/30/24 Unexecuted Unexecuted Unexecuted
16.70% 12.35% 12.76% 15.81% 2.16% 2.33% 1.03% 3.47% 5.25% 2.00% 6.53% 3.02% 0.00% 0.96% 0.00% 1.42% 0.41% 0.00% 0.00% 8.66% 1.02% 0.61% 3.50%

FUNDING 3.92% 11.60% 10.45% 12.64% 0.98% 8.37% 2.31% 2.42% 6.81% 5.58% 10.22% 2.44% 0.64% 0.70% 0.03% 1.54% 0.63% 0.28% 0.05% 5.41% 0.70% 4.55% 7.75%
Carry In 5,535,049      232,434      667,184      529,853      809,259      140,559        -               331,139        976,245        -               1,464,617      -            91,341     (0)                 4,115           171,351    69,896         40,000 7,057      -            -             -            -            
New Funding 8,799,269      329,413      995,148      967,386      1,002,191    -               1,200,000      -               346,724        -               800,000        -               350,000      -          100,000         -              49,625      20,000         0 -         775,794     100,000      651,667      1,111,320   
Holdbacks for Future Contracts (3,248,515)     -             (221,664)     (226,069)     -             -               (666,609)       -               -               (138,583)       (424,821)       (622,213)       (21,250)      -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            (20,000)       (380,891)    (526,415)    
Holdbacks for Future WSW Operations (RESERVES) (1,895,291)     (72,959)       (149,272)     (145,108)     (298,565)     -               (124,913)       -               -               (40,000)         (146,607)       (224,555)       (231,555)    (41,341)    (7,000)           -              (139,384)   (37,872)        0 -         -            (30,000)       (30,688)      (175,472)    
Operator Cost Reimbursement per IFA 219,685         97,761        93,927        27,996        -            

TOTAL FUNDING 9,410,198      488,889      1,389,157    1,219,989    1,540,881    140,559        408,478        331,139        346,724        797,661        228,571        617,849        97,195       50,000     93,000           4,115           81,592      52,024         40,000       7,057      775,794     50,000        240,088      409,434      

EXPENDITURES 4,638,916         Check figure 2,870,982        7,509,898     Check figure 280,732             Check Figure 872,851           1,522,373        
FEDERAL AND NON FEDERAL CONTRACTS
Pre-Existing Contracts 1,711,268      -             362,564      168,187      38,038        57,692          -               301,097        732,519        -               -            -          -                4,115           -           -              40,000 7,057      -            -             -            -            
New Contracts 8,020,099      -             886,655      904,277      1,040,018    19,711          1,006,800      -               245,257        50,000          594,750        1,048,832      30,000       50,000     65,000           -              40,000      40,000         0 -         522,232     40,000        603,077      833,490      

Future Year Portion of New Contract (3,248,515)     -             (221,664)     (226,069)     -             -               (666,609)       -               -               (138,583)       (424,821)       (622,213)       (21,250)      -          -                -              -           -              0 -         -            (20,000)       (380,891)    (526,415)    
TOTAL FEDERAL AND NON FEDERAL CONTRACTS 6,482,852      -             1,027,555    846,395      1,078,056    77,403          340,191        301,097        245,257        643,935        169,929        426,619        8,750         50,000     65,000           4,115           40,000      40,000         40,000       7,057      522,232     20,000        222,186      307,075      

DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,952,005         Check fig 1,795,587        5,156,436     199,115             589,289           771,476           1,071,494        

Infrastructure Agreements
Allocated Costs WSW Share 426,776         -             38,855        42,121        165,724      855               6,686            12,036          16,105          34,003          2,861            79,560          -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         23,278       522            -            4,172         
Total Infrastructure Agreements 426,776         -             38,855        42,121        165,724      855               6,686            12,036          16,105          34,003          2,861            79,560          -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         23,278       522            -            4,172         

WSW Coordination and Administration
Personnel - wages and benefits 2,077,421      -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Professional fees - accounting, legal, consulting 68,950           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
IT: Professional support 40,200           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
IT:Licensing, annual fees,software 34,801           -             -             -             648             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Supplies-general office & kitchen 7,377             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               1,199            1,373         -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Telephone 12,500           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Postage, print,copy, rentals 200               -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Occupancy 134,340         -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
External Printing & publications 750               -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Individual Travel
    Local travel & mileage 10,000           -             -             -             -             -               600               -               -               -               -               1,761            -            -          -                -              -           -              0 -         2,639         -             -            -            
    Long distance travel 5,000             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               1,500            -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              0 -         1,000         -             -            -            
Individual Travel 15,000           -             -             -             -             -               600               -               1,500            -               -               1,761            -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         3,639         -             -            -            
Conferences & Meetings

Individual Industry and CBO 9,500             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Group Conference Events including Travel -                -             2,314          2,330          356             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Washington Workforce Association (WWA) 13,000           -             6,017          6,059          924             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
National Association of Workforce Boards (NAWB) 9,000             -             4,166          4,194          640             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Prepaid NAWB Registration and Flights -                -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            

Conferences & Meetings 31,500           -             12,497        12,583        1,920          -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Insurance 19,464           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Furniture & equipment 20,870           20,870        -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Local meeting support 6,000             -             1,389          1,398          213             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Memberships & Subscriptions 23,696           -             6,387          6,432          981             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Staff Training 7,500             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Total WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570      20,870        20,272        20,413        3,763          -               600               -               1,500            -               -               2,960            1,373         -          -                -              -           -              -            -         3,639         -             -            -            

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346      20,870        59,127        62,534        169,486      855               7,286            12,036          17,605          34,003          2,861            82,520          1,373         -          -                -              -           -              0 -         26,917       522            -            4,172         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198      20,870        1,086,682    908,928      1,247,542    78,257          347,477        313,133        262,862        677,938        172,790        509,139        10,123       50,000     65,000           4,115           40,000      40,000         40,000 7,057      549,149     20,522        222,186      311,248      
Net Revenue Less Expenditures Before Admin Transfer (0)                  468,019      302,475      311,061      293,339      62,301          61,001          18,006          83,862          119,723        55,782          108,710        87,072       (0)            28,000           (0)                41,592      12,024         0 (0)           226,645     29,478        17,902       98,186       

WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation

FEDERAL FUNDING

Private and Unrestricted Other Government Grants

NON-FEDERAL FUNDING

Other Federal Grants

https://workforcesw.sharepoint.com/sites/WSW-Fiscal-NEW/Shared Documents/Fiscal PY23 Budget Only/Mid-Year Revision/Board Copies/4 EB FINAL 11.22.23  With  WIOA HOLDBACK 11/25/202311:39 AM



6
7

8

9
10
11
12

13

14

15
16
3536
4142
5253
5455
56
64
65
7475
7677
7879
80
81
100
106
117118
119120
121
129
139140
141142
143
165166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176177
178
179
180
181182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
196
219220
221222
223
224
227
228

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N P Q R S

PY23 PROPOSED BUDGET (Revised) -  COMPARISON
Fiscal Year - July 1, 2023 Through June 30, 2024

Item
Proposed 

Budget PY23
% of
Total

Approved 
Revised 

Budget PY22
% of
Total

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
% of
Total

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

FUNDING
FEDERAL FUNDING

Total WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation 4,638,916       49%      6,560,613        64%      (1,921,697)      (29%)            4,248,384        64%        390,532           9%                
Total WIOA Governer Discretionary Funds 487,283         5%       171,350          2%       315,933          184%            520,002           7%          (32,719)           (6%)               
Total Other Federal Grants 2,480,895       26%      1,854,884        18%      626,011          34%             2,073,787        23%        407,108           20%              

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDING 7,607,093    81%    8,586,846     84%    (979,753)       (11%)           6,842,172      94%       764,921         11%              

NON-FEDERAL FUNDING
Total Private and Unrestricted 280,732         3%       458,062          4%       (177,331)         (39%)            619,660           2%          (338,928)         (55%)             

Total Other Government Funding 1,522,373       16%      1,215,152        12%      307,221          25%             1,020,000        4%          502,373           49%              
TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDING 1,803,104    19%    1,673,214     16%    129,890        8%               1,639,660      6%         163,444         10%              

TOTAL FUNDING 9,410,198    100%  10,260,060   100%  (849,863)       (8%)             8,481,832      100%     928,366         11%              

EXPENDITURES
FEDERAL CONTRACTS

Total WIOA Contracts 2,952,005       31%      4,081,521        43%      (1,129,516)      (28%)            2,692,613        44%        259,392           10%              
Total Governer Discretionary Contracts 322,660         3%       87,516            1%       235,144          269%            363,639           5%          (40,979)           (11%)             
Total Other Federal Contracts 1,890,521       20%      1,414,573        15%      475,948          34%             1,598,143        19%        292,379           18%              

TOTAL FEDERAL CONTRACTS 5,165,186    55%    5,583,611     58%    (418,425)       (7%)             4,654,395      69%       510,791         11%              

NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS
Total Private and Unrestricted Contracts 199,115         2%       211,444          2%       (12,329)          (6%)              231,694           2%          (32,579)           (14%)             
Total Other Government Contracts 1,118,551       12%      1,007,167        11%      111,384          11%             645,000           4%          473,551           73%              

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS 1,317,666    14%    1,218,611     13%    99,055          8%               876,694         5%         440,972         50%              

DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS
Total Infrastructure Agreements ** 426,776         5%       298,438          3%       128,338          43%             413,978           3%          12,798            3%                
WSW Coordination and Administration
Personnel - wages and benefits 2,077,421       22%      1,971,467        21%      105,954          5%               2,028,221        17%        49,200            2%                
Professional fees - accounting, legal, consulting 68,950           1%       95,150            1%       (26,200)          (28%)            68,950            1%          -                  0%
IT: Professional support 40,200           0%       37,200            0%       3,000             8%               33,600            0%          6,600              20%              
IT:Licensing, annual fees,software 34,801           0%       64,635            1%       (29,834)          (46%)            41,738            1%          (6,937)             (17%)             
Supplies-general office & kitchen 7,377             0%       10,010            0%       (2,633)            (26%)            7,377              0%          -                  0%
Telephone 12,500           0%       11,436            0%       1,064             9%               12,500            0%          -                  0%
Postage, print,copy, rentals 200                0%       900                0%       (700)               (78%)            750                 0%          (550)                (73%)             
Occupancy 134,340         1%       123,420          1%       10,920            9%               123,420           1%          10,920            9%                
External Printing & publications 750                0%       3,000              0%       (2,250)            (75%)            750                 0%          -                  0%
Individual Travel
    Local travel & mileage 10,000           0%       22,350            0%       (12,350)          (55%)            10,000            0%          -                  0%
    Long distance travel 5,000             0%       7,500              0%       (2,500)            (33%)            5,000              0%          -                  0%
Individual Travel 15,000           0%       29,850            0%       (14,850)          (50%)            15,000            0%          -                  0%
Conferences & Meetings:

Individual Industry and CBO 9,500             0%       9,500              0%       -                  0% 9,500              0%          -                  0%
Group Conference Events including Travel -                  0%

Washington Workforce Association (WWA) 13,000           0%       12,000            0%       1,000             8%               13,000             0% -                  0%
National Association of Workforce Boards (NAWB) 9,000             0%       18,000            0%       (9,000)            (50%)            -                 0%          9,000              100%             
Prepaid NAWB Registration and Flights -                 0% -                  0% -                 100%            -                  0% -                  0%

Conferences & Meetings total 31,500           0%       39,500            0%       (8,000)            (20%)            22,500            0%          9,000              40%              
Insurance 19,464           0%       18,538            0%       926                5%               19,464            0%          -                  0%
Furniture & equipment 20,870           0%       41,099            0%       (20,228)          (49%)            20,870            0%          -                  0%
Local meeting support 6,000             0%       5,350              0%       650                12%             6,000              0%          -                  0%
Memberships & Subscriptions 23,696           0%       23,520            0%       176                1%               23,696            0%          -                  0%
Staff Training 7,500             0%       50,000            1%       (42,500)          (85%)            7,500              0%          -                  0%
Total WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570       27%      2,525,075        26%      (24,506)          (1%)              2,432,336        23%        68,233            3%                
Total Special Projects & Prepaids or allowance for unders -                 0% (47,928)           (1%)      -                  0% -                 (0%)         -                  0%

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346    31%    2,775,586     29%    103,832        3.74%         2,846,314      26%       81,032           3%                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198    100%  9,577,807     100%  (215,537)       (2%)             8,377,403      100%     1,032,795      12%              
FUNDING LESS EXPENDITURES* (0)                  682,253         104,429         (104,429)       (100%)          
* PY23 revised budget intentially nets to zero - see future period holdback for reserve total
**Expected IFA expense offset contributions from partners moved to new funding section of the (proposed) report.

Change from Initial Approved (June 2023) Current YearYear over Year

https://workforcesw.sharepoint.com/sites/WSW-Fiscal-NEW/Shared Documents/Fiscal PY23 Budget Only/Mid-Year Revision/Board Copies/4 EB FINAL 11.22.23  With  WIOA HOLDBACK 11/25/202311:35 AM



7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14

15
16
17
24
25
32
33
34
35
36
41
42
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
68
69
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
92
100
102
103
108
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
133
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
154
155
156
157
158
159
160

B C D E F G H I J K L M

PY23 PROPOSED BUDGET (Revised) - BY YEAR
Fiscal Year - July 1, 2023 Through June 30, 2024

Item
Proposed 

Budget PY23
% of
Total  Future Years

% of
Total Total

FUNDING
FEDERAL FUNDING

Total WIOA - Carry In 2,238,729       24%     - 0% 2,238,729 

Total WIOA - New Funding 2,400,187       26%     1,113,637           22% 3,513,824 

Net WIOA Funding Available 4,638,916     49%     1,113,637         22%     5,752,553           

Total WIOA Governer Discretionary Funds 487,283          5%       - 0% 487,283 

Total Other Federal Grants 2,480,895       26%     2,641,106           51% 5,122,001 

Net Federal Grants - Other 2,968,177     32%     2,641,106         51%     5,609,284           

NET FEDERAL FUNDING 7,607,093     81%     3,754,743         73%     11,361,837         

NON-FEDERAL FUNDING
Total Private and Unrestricted 280,732          3%       225,597 4%      506,329 

Total Other Government Funding 1,522,373       16%     1,163,465           23%     2,685,838 

NET NON-FEDERAL 1,803,104     19%     1,389,062         27%     3,192,167           

NET FUNDING AVAILABLE 9,410,198     100%    5,143,806         100%   14,554,004         

EXPENDITURES
FEDERAL CONTRACTS

Total WIOA Pre-Existing Contracts 568,788          6%       - 0% 568,788 
Total WIOA New Contracts 2,383,217       25%     447,733 9% 2,830,950 
Net WIOA Contract Expenditures 2,952,005     31%     447,733            9%      3,399,738           

Total Governer Discretionary Contracts 322,660          3%       - 0% 322,660 
Total Other Federal Grants 1,890,521       20%     1,873,477           36% 3,763,998 

Net Federal Contracts 2,213,181     24%     1,873,477         36%     4,086,658           

NET FEDERAL CONTRACTS 5,165,186     55%     2,321,210         45%     7,486,396           

NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS
Total Private and Unrestricted Contracts 199,115          2%       - 0% 199,115 
Total Other Government Contracts 1,118,551       12%     927,305 18% 2,045,856 

NET NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS 1,317,666     14%    927,305            18% 2,244,971           

DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS
Infrastructure Agreements 426,776          5%       N/A  0% 426,776 

WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570       27%     N/A  0% 2,500,570 

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346     31%    - 0% 2,927,346           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198     100%  3,248,515         63% 12,658,713         

Reserves (0) 1,895,291 1,895,291           
Initial Reserves: 304,913              
Change: 522% 1,590,378           

https://workforcesw.sharepoint.com/sites/WSW-Fiscal-NEW/Shared Documents/Fiscal PY23 Budget Only/Mid-Year Revision/Board Copies/4 EB FINAL 11.22.23  With  WIOA HOLDBACK  
11/22/2023

37%



Page 1  

 
 
 
 

MEMO  

 
DATE:             
 
TO:  
 
 
FROM: 
 
RE:                                         

DECEMBER 5, 2023 
 
WSW FINANCE COMMITTEE 
WSW EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
BARRI BLAIR, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
WSW QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORTS                     

 
 
WSW quarterly spending reports for the first quarter of the current fiscal year are available and included in the meeting 
packet. 

 
QUARTERLY REPORTS 

 

WSW Coordination and Admin (Page 1, Operations): Total spending for WSW operations  is at 23.5% of budget as of 
September 30,2023. Noteworthy variances are explained on the report. Many categories are not expected to be spent 
evenly across the year, such as Equipment, Travel, and Conferences. There are no concerns with current spending 
rates.  
 

WSW WIOA Fund Obligations (Page 2): All active WIOA Formula Fund Grants are displayed for the three funding 
streams. The prior year’s grant allocations are 100% obligated for all funds. Current year grants are required to be 80% 
obligated by June 30, 2024. Obligation totals include all contracts in place as of November 22, 2023 and all operational 
spending as of September 30, 2023.  Only contracted funds can be obligated before they are spent. Operational costs 
are obligated over time as funds are expended. 

 

WSW WIOA Subcontract Details (Page 3): This report is a detailed list of current WIOA Formula contracts by category 
with comparison to the total revised contract budget. Youth contracts executed last year for services in the current 
year are included in the youth total. 
 

Grant Budget vs Actual Spending (Page 4‐18): These reports communicate the details of competitive and other state 
and  federal grants with  fixed grant  terms which have been awarded  to WSW.   Most have  line  item budgets. Data 
displayed in the reports includes the length of the funding term, budget versus actual spending by budget line item, and 
contracted obligations. WIOA Formula funding is not included in this group of reports.  Most of the funds are on track 
with expectations. Activity  is expected to  increase over the course of the year for those that are behind  in spending 
relative to the  length of time they have been  in play. The current year’s BFET/DSHS grant has expired but has been 
renewed. The ability  to continue  to stand up  this program, and others, will be enhanced by new program staff.   A 
summary of the grant reports with comments on selected data is displayed on PAGE 4. 
  
Subcontract Spending and Performance (Page 19‐54): These reports display spending and performance measured 
against expectations for individual programs/contracts. All funding sources are represented. The reports also display 
qualitative information regarding the status of the program in the form of comments developed by program 
management staff. 

 
 



Potential Funding for July 2023‐June2024 (PY23) * 

• Department of Labor Employment and Training Administration (DOL‐ETA)

o RECEIVED: $195,000.00  WIOA Dislocated Worker Rapid Response; Employment

Security Department release of 15% of 25% holdback.

o AWARDED; Contract Pending: $350,000 Community Projects Funding for Future Leaders Project.

o RECEIVED: $1,200,000: Opioid Disaster Recovery National Dislocated Worker Grant; Subaward

through Employment Security Department.

o APPLICATION SUBMITTED: Not awarded H1B Pathways to Infrastructure Jobs; Subaward through

Employment Security Department. Funding proposal submitted in June for $1,500,000.00.

o Future year funding: WIOA Governor’s Discretionary Funds Economic Security for All: Program

funding $5.7 Mil to be allocated statewide after 5% holdback.

• Washington Department of Commerce

o AWARDED; Contract Pending: $651,667 Economic Security for All: Incentives funding to be allocated
statewide after 5% holdback.

o AWARDED; Contract Pending: $1,111,320 Economic Security for All: BIPOC Business Services  to be
allocated statewide after 5% holdback.

• ARPA Clark County

o NOT AWARDED: Business Services and Support: $250,000.00.

o AWARDED; Contract Pending: $100,000.00 Re‐Entry and Training.

• Employment Security Dept/Washington State Achievement Council
o AWARDED; Contract Pending: Healthcare Sector $800,000 Good Jobs Challenge.

Construction Sector not awarded $2 MIL

• Worksystems Portland

o RECEIVED:  $10,400 WSW to consult on interstate bridge replacement.

*All awarded, and received funds are included in the mid‐year budget revision.

UPDATED 11.21.2023 BLB



 

 

 
 

WSW BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Tuesday, December 12, 2023 

4:00 pm to 6:00 pm 
Workforce Southwest Washington – Mt. Rainier Room 

 
4:00 pm  Welcome, introduction of members, guests, and staff  
 
4:10 pm Consent Agenda      Paige Spratt  

• Minutes, Contract, Policy Memos *      
            
4:15 pm Finance       Renny Christopher 

• Treasurers Report     Barri Horner 

• PY23 Budget Revision Presentation *  
 
4:35 pm Governance                A.D. Simmons, Miriam Halliday   

• Board Nominations *             Nathan Webster, & Tracy Doriot 

• Officer Nominations *  

• Officer Recognition     
 
4:50 pm Strategic Plan Refection Break Out    Miriam Halliday 
 
5:50 pm Board Recognition      Paige Spratt 
         
5:55 pm Public Comment      Paige Spratt   
 
6:00 pm  Adjourn       Paige Spratt 
 

     

* - Action Required 

https://www.google.com/maps/place/805+Broadway+St+%23+412,+Vancouver,+WA+98660/@45.6276203,-122.6700861,19z/data=!4m13!1m7!3m6!1s0x5495a8b10bcfffff:0xf3fc9a61f19a992!2s805+Broadway+St+%23+412,+Vancouver,+WA+98660!3b1!8m2!3d45.6274657!4d-122.6701058!3m4!1s0x5495a8b10bcfffff:0xf3fc9a61f19a992!8m2!3d45.6274657!4d-122.6701058


 

 

WSW Youth Incentives Policy #3042                    Page 1 of 4 

Workforce Southwest Washington                       
Policies and Procedures  

 
Youth Incentives  
POLICY #: 3042 
           

Date of Original Policy:   12/12/2023  

 
PURPOSE: 
Workforce Southwest Washington is issuing this policy to provide guidance on 
the expected use of incentives for youth enrolled in Title I of the Workforce 
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) to support comprehensive service 
delivery. Incentives may be used as an allowable payment for participation in 
WIOA Title 1-B youth work readiness and work experience (WEX) activities.  
 
 

BACKGROUND:  
Incentive payments to youth participants are permitted for recognition and 
achievement directly tied to training activities and work experiences (WIOA final 
rules, 20 CFR 681.640). Local policies govern the use of incentives and ensure 
that incentive payments are tied to the goals of the enrolled young adult’s 
Individual Service Strategy (ISS). The incentive plan must be outlined in writing 
before the commencement of the Title I Youth services and be in accordance 
with the requirements contained in 2 CFR part 200. 
 
Incentives for participants in the youth program are different from stipends. 
Incentive payments are made to incentivize participant attainment or 
achievement of program activity milestones; stipends, rather, are used to 
recognize the time and effort spent participating in program activities. 
 
  

POLICY:  

Incentive payments to WIOA Title I youth participants are for recognition and 
achievement of milestones directly tied to work experiences (see Attachment A). 
Service providers must ensure that the incentive payments are: 
 

a. Awarded in recognition and achievement directly tied to work experiences 
(see Attachment A), 

b. Aligned with the program elements identified in Attachment A, 
c. Tied to participant goals expressly determined in their ISS, 
d. Aligned with our WIOA Title I youth program policies, and  
e. Provided in accordance with the requirements and cost principles in 2 

CFR part 200. 
 

Incentive payments must be in compliance with the Cost Principles in 2 CFR part 
200 and such incentive payments cannot be spent on entertainment costs, such 



 

 

WSW Youth Incentives Policy #3042                    Page 2 of 4 

as movie or sporting event tickets, gift cards to movie theaters, or other venues 
whose sole purpose is entertainment. Additionally, internal controls must be 
established to safeguard any cash or other forms of payment used to award 
incentive payments, such as gift cards.  
 

Any participant receiving an incentive must accurately complete a W-9 form 
before incentive payments are made. Participants receiving more than $599.99 in 
incentive payments in one calendar year will be issued an Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) Form 1099-MISC by January 31 for the prior calendar year in 
which incentives were provided for tax reporting purposes. Incentives are taxable 
miscellaneous income. 
 
The allowance for and limits on incentive payments to WIOA Title I youth in 
projects funded by WIOA Title I statewide activities discretionary funds will be 
outlined by WSW in the contracts’ special terms and conditions. 
 

Incentive payments are not services, but, rather, financial transactions. Youth 
service providers must document incentive payments to youth by recording in 
ETO case notes and participant files the youth program element and milestone 
achieved, along with the incentive amount paid for achievement. 
 
 

PROCEDURES: 
Documentation and Data Entry Requirements 
 

a. Full WIOA registration – A Full WIOA Title I eligibility determination and 
enrollment into a WIOA Title I youth program is required to receive an 
incentive payment. Refer to WSW Eligibility Handbook – Attachment A, for 
more information on documenting eligibility and enrollment for WIOA Title I 
youth programs. 

b. Create and Document Service in ETO - incentive payments may only be 
awarded for recognition of success in completing Youth Program 
Elements listed in Attachment A. 

c. Document Incentives in ETO Case Notes - Service providers must meet 
data entry requirements by documenting the following: 

a. Justification for each participant who receives an incentive payment 
by providing the business case for how the incentive payment 
contributes to the participant’s success. 

b. Details of the incentive provided, including amount, funding source, 
date of issue/receipt, and the service participant completed. 

c. An acknowledgement form detailing the incentives completed while 
developing ISS, must be signed by the participant and service 
provider and attached to case note. 

d. An acknowledgement form detailing the receipt of incentive(s) 
must be signed by the participant and attached to the case note. 

 
 

 
 
 

https://workforcesw.org/results-and-data/policies


 

 

WSW Youth Incentives Policy #3042                    Page 3 of 4 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
Providers of WIOA Title I youth services must have policies and procedures in 
place that govern the award of incentive payments to WIOA Title I youth 
participants according to the requirements in this policy. 
 
 

REFERENCES/RESOURCES: 
ESD #5621 Rev 5 Incentive Payments to WIOA Title I Participants 
WSW Eligibility Handbook – Attachment A 
TEGL 21-16, Section 5 
20 CFR 681.640 
20 CFR Part 200 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A 
 
 

WEBSITE: 
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies  
 
 
INQUIRIES: 
Please contact Lyn Love llove@workforcesw.org (360) 559-4500 for questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

https://storemultisites.blob.core.windows.net/media/WPC/adm/policy/5621-5.pdf
https://storemultisites.blob.core.windows.net/media/WPC/adm/policy/5621-5.pdf
https://workforcesw.org/results-and-data/policies
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/ETA/advisories/TEGL/2017/TEGL_21-16.pdf
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
mailto:llove@workforcesw.org


 

 

WSW Youth Incentives Policy #3042                    Page 4 of 4 

Attachment A 
 

Youth Program Elements for which incentive payments are or are not allowed 
 

No. Program Element Allowable Frequency* Amount 

1 
Tutoring, study skills training, instruction, and dropout 
prevention 

No 
  

2 
Alternative secondary school services or dropout 
recovery services 

No 
  

3 Paid and unpaid work experience – minimum 100 hours  Yes One Time $300 

4 Occupational skills training No   

5 
Education offered concurrently with workforce 
preparation and training for a specific occupation—
when in preparation for a WEX 

Yes One Time $200 

6 Leadership development opportunities No 
  

7 Supportive services No 
  

8 Adult mentoring  No 
  

9 Follow-up services No 
  

10 Comprehensive guidance and counseling No 
  

11 Financial literacy education No 
  

12 Entrepreneurial skills training No 
  

13 Services that provide labor market information No 
  

14 Post-secondary preparation and transition activities No 
  

 
*One Time frequency indicates per participant lifetime, not per participant enrollment.  



 

Last Revision November 2023 

   

 

 

Training Policy Handbook – Attachment A 

 

March 9, 2016 

 

Workforce Southwest Washington 
805 Broadway, Suite 412 

Vancouver, WA 98660 

Tamara Toles 

ttoles@workforcesw.org  

(360) 567-1075 

 

 

  

mailto:agimlin@workforcesw.org


 

 

Introduction ......................................................................................................................................... 46 

Definitions ........................................................................................................................................... 57 

References .......................................................................................................................................... 79 

Supersedes ......................................................................................................................................... 79 

Allowable Trainings ........................................................................................................................... 810 

1. On-the-Job Training ........................................................................................................... 810 

1.1. Purpose ........................................................................................................................ 810 

1.2. Procedures................................................................................................................... 810 

1.3. Reimbursement Requirements ................................................................................ 1315 

1.4. Forms ......................................................................................................................... 1315 

1.5. Monitoring .................................................................................................................. 1416 

2. Occupational Skills Training ........................................................................................... 1517 

2.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 1517 

2.2. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 1517 

2.3. Procedures................................................................................................................. 1517 

3. Individual Training Account ............................................................................................ 1517 

3.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 1517 

3.2. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 1618 

3.3. Covered Costs ........................................................................................................... 2021 

3.4. Limitations ................................................................................................................. 2123 

3.5. Exceptions ................................................................................................................. 2224 

3.6. Forms ......................................................................................................................... 2224 

4. Short Term Training ......................................................................................................... 2425 

4.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 2425 

4.2. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 2425 

4.3. Procedures................................................................................................................. 2425 

4.4. Exceptions ................................................................................................................. 2526 

5. Transitional Jobs ............................................................................................................. 2627 

5.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 2627 

5.2. Procedures................................................................................................................. 2627 

5.3. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 2627 

5.4. Forms ......................................................................................................................... 2627 

5.5. Monitoring .................................................................................................................. 2627 



 

6. Work Experiences/Internships ....................................................................................... 2728 

6.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 2728 

6.2. Procedures................................................................................................................. 2728 

6.3. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 2930 

6.4. Forms/Documentation .............................................................................................. 3031 

6.5. Data Entry .................................................................................................................. 3132 

7. Entrepreneurial Training ................................................................................................. 3233 

7.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 3233 

7.2. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 3233 

7.3. Available Training Options ....................................................................................... 3233 

7.4. Covered Costs ........................................................................................................... 3435 

7.5. Data Entry .................................................................................................................. 3435 

8. Incumbent Worker ........................................................................................................... 3536 

8.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 3536 

8.2. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 3536 

8.3. Procedures................................................................................................................. 3839 

8.4. Incumbent Worker Training for Layoff Aversion using Rapid Response Funds . 3940 

8.5. Data Entry Requirements ......................................................................................... 4041 

8.6. Reporting Requirements .......................................................................................... 4041 

8.7. Monitoring .................................................................................................................. 4041 

9. Customized Training ....................................................................................................... 4243 

9.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 4243 

9.2. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 4243 

9.3. Procedures................................................................................................................. 4445 

9.4. Employers outside of Washington State ................................................................. 4546 

9.5. Monitoring .................................................................................................................. 4546 

10. Post-Secondary Tuition Payments ................................................................................. 4647 

10.1. Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 4647 

10.2. Requirements ............................................................................................................ 4647 

10.3. Covered Costs ........................................................................................................... 4748 

10.4. Limitations and Guidelines ...................................................................................... 4849 



 

 

Introduction 

 

The content of this procedural handbook combines all WSW training policies into one guide. This 

handbook will serve as the mechanism to implement and manage policy changes.  

 

This handbook provides guidance to staff and partners concerning administration requirements for 

the Youth, Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs (WIOA Title 1-B) and other federal funded 

programs in Southwest Workforce Development Area. This guidance is specific to all training 

components of the programs including On-the-Job, Work Experiences, Internships, Individual 

Training Accounts, Transitional Jobs, Self-Employment, and Incumbent Worker. 

 

Each section is specific to the type of training with subsections detailing requirements for each 

program.   

 

Programs receiving WIOA Title I-B funding must ensure that specific strategies are in place to ensure 

that “services are provided efficiently and effectively in a timely manner without undue delays” and 

such strategies will be included as points of discussion during contract negotiations and annual 

monitoring.   

 

All required forms Subrecipients must use when administering and documenting each training service 

are detailed at the end of each training section.  

 

  



   

 

Page 5 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Definitions 

 

• Adult Work Experience/Internship – A planned, structured, time-limited learning experience that 

takes places in a workplace. An internship or work experience may be paid or unpaid, as 

appropriate. An internship or work experience may be provided in the private for-profit, non-profit, 

or public sectors. Labor standards apply to any internship or work experience in which an 

employee/employer relationship exists under applicable law. Service is classified as an 

Individualized Career Service as described in § 678.430(b).  

• Apprenticeship – A system of training a new generation of practitioners of a trade or profession 

with on-the-job training and often accompanied with classroom work and reading which must be: 

1. Registered under the Act of August 16, 1937 (commonly known as the “National 

Apprenticeship Act”; 50 Stat. 664, chapter 663; 20 U.S.C. 50 et seq.); and 

2. Must meet the requirements and registered with the State of Washington. 

• Case Notes – For the purpose of Data Element Validation (DEV), case notes refer to either paper 

or electronic statements by staff that identifies, at a minimum, the following: a participant’s status 

for a specific data element, the date on which the information was obtained, and the staff who 

obtained the information (TEGL 28-11, Attachment A). 

• Customized Training – Training that is designed to meet the specific requirements of an 

employer (including a group of employers), that is conducted with a commitment by the employer 

to employ an individual upon successful completion of the training, and for which the employer 

pays a significant portion of the cost of training. 

• Employable – The participant currently has the skills, knowledge, and life circumstances that 

would allow them to obtain employment, to stay in employment and to move on in the workplace. 

• Incumbent Worker – An individual who is employed, meets Fair Labor Standards Act 

requirements for an employer-employee relationship, and has an established employment history 

with the employer for 6 months or more. 20 CFR § 680.780 

• Incumbent Worker Training – Training designed to meet the special requirements of an 

employer (or group of employers) to retain a skilled workforce or avert the need to lay off 

employees by assisting workers in obtaining the skills necessary to retain employment and 

conducted with a commitment by the employer to retain or avert laying off incumbent worker(s) 

that are trained in order to increase the competitiveness of the employee and/or employer. 

• In-Demand Industry Sector or Occupation – In general, (i) an industry sector that has a 

substantial current or potential impact (including through jobs that lead to economic self-

sufficiency and opportunities for advancement) on the state, regional, or local economy, as 

appropriate, and that contributes to the growth or stability of other supporting businesses, or the 

growth of other industry sectors; or (ii) an occupation that currently has or is projected to have a 

number of positions (including positions that lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities 

for advancement) in an industry sector so as to have a significant impact on the state, regional, or 

local economy, as appropriate. The determination of whether an industry sector or occupation is 

in-demand shall be made by the state board or local board, as appropriate, using state and 

regional business and labor market projections, including the use of labor market information.  

http://www.doleta.gov/OA/fitzact.cfm
http://www.doleta.gov/OA/fitzact.cfm
http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/Apprenticeship/Programs/default.asp
http://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/attach/TEGL/TEGL_28-11-Atta1.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/20/680.780


   

 

Page 6 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"• Individual Employment Plan – A plan is an individualized career service, that is jointly developed 

by the participant and case manager. The plan is an ongoing strategy to identify employment 

goals, achievement objectives, and an appropriate combination of services for the participant to 

achieve the employment goals. 

• Individual Service Strategy (ISS) – A distinct plan designed specifically for the WIOA Youth 

Program participants and is based on the information obtained during the objective assessment. 

The ISS will serve as the basis for the entire case management service strategy and as a guide 

for delivery of appropriate services. 

• Individual Training Account – A payment agreement established on behalf of a participant with 

a training provider. The account is set up for an individual who seeks training services and who is 

eligible to receive WIOA training services may, in consultation with a career planner, select an 

eligible provider of training services from the Eligible Training Provider List. 

• Layoff Aversion – A layoff is averted when: 1) a worker’s job is saved with an existing employer 

that is at risk of downsizing or closing; or 2) a worker at risk of dislocation transitions to a different 

job with the same employer or a new job with a different employer and experiences no time or a 

minimal time on unemployment. 

• Local Training Investment List – The list is comprised of those industries and occupations that 

are In-Demand, Balanced or Not-In-Demand for our area. WSW revises this list annually based on 

the local economic conditions, employer needs and training provider input. The list can be found 

on the WSW website. For more information regarding the Local Training Investment process refer 

to WSW Policy #3012. 

• On-the-Job Training – Training provided by employers to paid participants in the form of 

productive work in jobs that (1) provide the knowledge or skills essential to the full and adequate 

performance of the jobs, (2) are available through programs that provide reimbursement to 

employers of up to 50 percent of the participants’ wages, with the exception provided by this 

policy, for the extraordinary costs of training and additional supervision related to the training, and 

(3) are limited in duration as appropriate to the occupations for which participants are being 

trained, taking into account training content, participants’ prior work experiences, and participants’ 

service strategies. 

• Participant/Trainee – An individual who is enrolled in a WIOA program and is receiving services. 

• Pre-Apprenticeship – A type of work experience listed under WIOA sec. 129(c)(2)(C). A pre-

apprenticeship is a program or set of strategies designed to prepare individuals to enter and 

succeed in a registered apprenticeship program and has a documented partnership with at least 

one, if not more, registered apprenticeship program(s). Quality pre-apprenticeship program is one 

described in TEN 13-12.  

• Recognized Post-Secondary Credential – A credential consisting of an industry recognized 

certificate or certification, a certificate of completion of an apprenticeship, a license recognized by 

the State involved or Federal government, or an associate or baccalaureate degree. 

• Self-sufficient Wage – A wage considered sufficient to meet the basic needs of the worker and 

their dependents as determined by the self-sufficiency calculators, individual job seeker, and case 

manager. Generally, this is interpreted as the hourly wage that the customer, working forty hours a 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList
http://workforcesw.org/providers#LocalTrainingInvestmentList
https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3012-rev-3-local-training-investment-list-2.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/attach/TEN/TEN_13-12_Acc.pdf


   

 

Page 7 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"week, would need to earn to be able to afford basic housing, food, utilities, transportation, and 

healthcare. 

• Subrecipient – The agency that WSW is contracting with to administer trainee services. 

• Transitional Jobs (Adult) – A limited work experience, that is subsidized in the public, private, or 

non-profit sectors for those individuals with barriers to employment because of chronic 

unemployment or inconsistent work history; these jobs are designed to enable an individual to 

establish a work history, demonstrate work success, and develop the skills that lead to 

unsubsidized employment. (WIOA sec. 134 (d)(5)). 

• Work-Based Training – Training that could include OJT, customized training, incumbent worker 

training, transitional jobs, registered apprenticeship or pre-apprenticeship. Generally, work-based 

training involves a commitment by an employer or employers to fully employ successful 

participants after they have completed the program. 

• Youth Unsubsidized Work Experience/Internship – An unpaid, planned, structured learning 

experience that takes place in a workplace for a limited period of time. The employer must meet 

the policy requirements and provide the participant opportunities for career exploration and skills 

development. 

• Youth Subsidized Work Experience/Internship – A paid, planned, structured learning 

experience that will take place in a workplace for a limited period of time. The employer must meet 

the policy requirements and provide the participant with opportunities for career exploration and 

skills development. 

References 

 

Federal/State Policies: 

• Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act (WIOA) 

• DOL Final Rules 

• ESD #5601 Individual Training Account 

• ESD #5606 OJT Reimbursement Above 50 Percent to 75 Percent 

• ESD #5607 Incumbent Worker Training Criteria 

• ESD #5608 Self-Employment Training 

• ESD #5616 Customized Training 

Supersedes 

 

This handbook supersedes the following WSW Policies: 

• #3004 Individual Training Account 

• #3017 On-The-Job Training Procedures 

• #3020 Youth Tuition 

• #3023 Youth Work Experience 

• WSW Incumbent Worker Training Guidelines  

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2016-08-19/pdf/2016-15975.pdf
http://www.wa.gov/esd/1stop/policies/documents/wioa_title1/5601_IndividualTrainingAccounts_Final.pdf
http://www.wa.gov/esd/1stop/policies/documents/wioa_title1/5606_OJTReimbursementAbove50percentto75percent_Final.pdf
http://www.wa.gov/esd/1stop/policies/documents/wioa_title1/5607_IncumbentWorkerTrainingCriteria_Final.pdf
http://www.wa.gov/esd/1stop/policies/documents/wioa_title1/5608_Self-EmploymentTraining_Final.pdf
http://www.wa.gov/esd/1stop/policies/documents/wioa_title1/5616_CustomizedTraining_Final.pdf


   

 

Page 8 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Allowable Trainings 

 

1. On-the-Job Training 

(To be followed for Adult, Dislocated Worker, Youth populations and all applicable funding 

sources)  

1.1. Purpose 

The purpose of an On-the-Job Training (OJT) is to assist businesses in training and retaining skilled, 

productive workers. OJTs may be used to help train newly hired employees or eligible current 

employees. OJTs are described in WIOA Section 3(44). The following procedures outline how an On-

the-Job Training Agreement and subsequent Training Plans must be developed. 

Area employers may work with a number of OJT brokering agencies and several workforce regions in 

Washington and Oregon. It is desirable from a customer service and marketing standpoint to keep 

OJT paperwork and rules as simple and standard as possible.  

To that end, these procedures define an OJT process that is in place in the City of Portland, 

Multnomah, Washington, Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum Counties. 

OJTs are provided under a contract with an employer in the public, non-profit, or private sector. 

Through the OJT contract, occupational training is provided for the trainee in exchange for 

reimbursement of 50 percent up to 75 percent of the wage rate to compensate for the employer's 

extraordinary costs. (WIOA sec. 134(c)(H). 

The following procedures and requirements must be used by all WSW Subrecipients administering 

OJTs to adults and older youth regardless of their program enrollment. 

1.2. Procedures 

Structure 

OJT Agreements are signed by employers and the Subrecipient. OJT agreements are non-financial. 

When a trainee is identified and determined eligible, a Training Plan is completed, and at that 

point funds are obligated. 

The OJT payment to the employer will be paid in one payment upon training completion.  

The OJT reimbursement may be between 50% and up to 75% of the wages earned during the 

training period or $5,000, whichever is less if all conditions for a training payment are met (see 

Invoices). The OJT reimbursement obligation should be calculated and shown on the top of the 

Training Plan and is the amount obligated for the training activity.  

Trainees 

All OJT trainees must be determined WIOA eligible and enrolled in the WIOA program. The Employer 

Checklist (Attachment A) and OJT Agreement (Attachment B) must be fully signed prior to the OJT 

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf


   

 

Page 9 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"start date. The Training Plan (Attachment C) must be completed within 2 weeks of the start date. 

OJTs may also be written for current employees who require additional training to advance in their 

salary structure, to a new position, or to a position eligible for benefits. 

Employer Checklist 

Complete the checklist with an employer who may be interested in entering into an OJT Agreement. 

Only one checklist is needed per employer, regardless the number of OJT Agreements that are in 

place. The checklist should be updated when the business is sold or transferred, when any other 

major changes affecting training, hiring or job retention occur, and at least every other year. Every 

employer must have a completed, current checklist on file.  

The first thirteen items on the Employer Checklist are informational and designed to trigger discussion 

around the Employer’s business and workforce needs. The next eight items are regulatory and may 

prevent writing the OJT if an irresolvable problem surfaces. When the employer representative signs 

the form, they are attesting to the validity of the regulatory information. The checklist is included in the 

OJT Agreement by reference. 

The checklist discussion should consider each employer’s circumstances. For example, relocation 

need not be discussed with a locally owned grocery store which has been at the same location for ten 

years. Relocation should be discussed with a national firm with many subsidiaries which is just 

breaking ground in the area. In addition, an employer must not have laid off worker within the 

previous 120 days or in process of laying off workers in the coming months. (See Employer Checklist 

item #20). 

Training Agreement and Rules 

An On-the-Job Training Agreement is completed after the Employer Checklist has been finalized, and 

any issues that may have surfaced have been resolved.  

The Agreement will cover any positions that have been identified for which the employer expects to 

need help filling and which are likely to require On-the-Job Training, as well as positions which are 

now filled by eligible adults, dislocated workers or youth who need training to retain employment and 

advance. 

The Agreement and OJT Rules (on the reverse) should be reviewed and discussed with the employer 

(and any involved staffing agency) to assure they understand the intent of the Agreement as well as 

the restrictions that apply. Both the employer of record and the provider must sign the OJT 

Agreement (see Employer Checklist item #5) prior to the start of the OJT. 

Training Plan and Instructions 

The On-the-Job Training Plan is the document which obligates training funds for a trainee and 

outlines the planned training activities to be accomplished during the training period. The Training 



   

 

Page 10 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Plan must be completed within 2 weeks of the OJT start date. Instructions for making the skill 

assessments are included on the form.  

All trainees must be determined WIOA eligible and be determined to require training in order to meet 

the employer’s entry-level standards for the in-demand position. Or, the trainee may be a current 

employee who has been determined WIOA eligible and needs training to advance to a new in-

demand position.  

At a minimum 70% of all OJT positions must be in an “in demand” occupation (can include those 

considered employer demand) and no more than 30% on “balanced” or “not in demand” occupations. 

Prior to starting an OJT in a “not in demand” occupation, the Subrecipient must submit an exception 

request to the WSW Program Manager. 

“Skills to be Learned” should be documented in the Training Plan. Put the “skills” in plain English, 

basing the score primarily upon the supervisor’s judgment. Training is presumed to be needed when 

the Skills to be Learned “Starting Capability” scores are either a “1” (beginning) or a “2” (intermediate) 

and can be raised to “3” (skilled) by the end of the training period. Exceptions may be granted on a 

case-by-case basis. 

For new hires, the job should be expected to last at least a year and provide at least thirty (30) hours 

of work each week. The wage in the Training Plan must be at the State minimum wage unless 

otherwise specified in the grant. Post completion of On-the-Job Training it is expected that employees 

earn at or above 275% of the Federal Poverty Level ($17.02 per hour). Exceptions may be made on a 

case-by-case basis. Training need, training completion, and training length are determined trainee by 

trainee, using the OJT Training Plan Instructions. The duration of the training period should be 

estimated as follows: 

▪ The provider representative, working with the employer, determines the job title for the position 

to be trained for, referencing the Occupational Network (O-Net). 

▪ From O-Net, SVP parameters are obtained. It is within these parameters that the length of 

training is set. 

▪ The provider representative should consider the training needs of each participant. 

▪ An OJT must be limited to the period of time required for a trainee to become proficient in the 

occupation for which training is being provided. In determining the appropriate length of the 

contract, consideration must be given to the skill requirements of the occupation, the academic 

and occupational skill level of the participant, prior work experience, and any disability. 

▪ No OJTs should be written with a Training Period of less than four weeks or more than 26 

weeks. Exceptions may be made on a case-by-case basis. 

▪ A current employee may receive an OJT if they are determined eligible and additional skills 

and abilities are needed. The OJT “Starting Capability” score and planned gain by the end of 



   

 

Page 11 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"the Training Period document the need for additional skills and abilities and justify the writing 

of an upgrade OJT. 

A current employee must also, as a result of successfully completing the OJT: 

▪ Expect a wage gain of $0.50 or more by the end of the training period; or  

▪ Expect an upgrade to a new position, and the “backfill” with a new hire for the employee’s 

previous position is made through the provider when training is complete; or  

▪ A case-by-case exception may be granted by WSW. Examples of exceptions might include 

(but are not limited to) a worker has a disability and requires retraining, medical benefits and 

regular employment status are gained as a result of the training, or a layoff can be averted 

through retraining. 

Supplement Training Plan 

Supplemental training tied to training on-the-job may be negotiated using the OJT Supplemental 

Training Plan. An example is a computer class that would help the trainee better complete their job 

duties, and it is scheduled during normal work hours. The employer might agree to release the trainee 

for the time and the trainee agrees to take, attend, and make satisfactory progress in the class. 

Supplemental training is highly encouraged where appropriate and may be paid for, in whole or in 

part, by the employer, the provider or, occasionally by the trainee. WIOA training funds may be used 

for supplemental training required as a part of the Training Plan. 

Training Plan Modification 

Modifications to the OJT may be executed as needed. The most common modification is extension of 

the training period. The second most common modification is a changed Training Plan. Work 

conditions often shift or trainee skills may require new work duties or a position change.  

Invoices 

There is one pay point for On-the-Job Training Plan obligation at the completion of training. The OJT 

payment may be between 50% and up to 75% of the wages earned during the training period or 

$5,000, whichever is less.  

Training period concludes once all of the “Skills to be Learned” listed in the Training Plan have been 

scored a “3” (“skilled”), an invoice may be submitted for the Training Period. The standard for scoring 

a “3” is “Meets the Employer’s standard for the Task.”  Scoring should consider the employer’s normal 

expectation for an employee in the same position at the same pay grade and with similar job tenure. 

Exceptions may be made on a case-by-case basis. 

No payment shall be given if material compliance issues are outstanding. 



   

 

Page 12 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"All components of the training period invoice must be complete. Use the calculation on the invoice to 

compute the appropriate billing amount.  

Total OJT reimbursements for an individual trainee should not exceed the amount obligated as shown 

on the top of the Training Plan, or any subsequent modifications. 

Early Termination 

If the trainee leaves during the training period, the employer will be reimbursed only for 50% of the 

wages earned during training, prior to separation. 

Writing a Second OJT for the Same Individual 

When training is completed, there may be opportunity to see if an “upgrade” is possible (increasing 

pay $.50 an hour or more) and if a “backfill” and a new hire can be negotiated. If “upgrade” is 

possible, consider writing a second OJT for the same Trainee. Significant additional training, as 

documented in a new Training Plan, must be needed. 

Exceptions 

As noted throughout these procedures, from time-to-time a participant or work conditions may not fit 

the “OJT” model. Exceptions should not become the norm but may be made when appropriate. 

Recognized exceptions include: 

▪ The trainee is not expected to be fully skilled (all “3”s on the Ending Capability score) at the 

end of the training period, but substantial training has occurred and the trainee is expected to 

be retained and trained further by the Employer. The Trainee should have gained a significant 

number of score points overall: “1”s to “2”s and some “2”s to “3”s, for example. An extension of 

the training period past the 26 weeks may be warranted, or the employer may deem the 

participant “trained” to a satisfactory level to maintain employment in the position. 

▪ A current employee trainee will not achieve a wage gain of 50 cents per hour or more, and no 

upgrade and “backfill” is expected. If there are other considerations, such as benefits or lay-off 

aversion, an exception may be warranted.  

▪ The job pays less than $10.00 per hour but a special participant or employer circumstance 

exists. For example, medical benefits are provided to a single mother on public assistance or 

an employee with a recent prison stay, but the job only pays $9.50 per hour. The employer 

might expect to accelerate pay increases through advancement so that trainees hired at $9.50 

can reasonably expect to earn $10.00 at training completion. 

▪ Training is critically needed and results can be measured, but may be for a very short or a very 

long period of time. 

▪ A trainee’s individual circumstances should also be considered. For example, the OJT length 

or amount may be adjusted to reasonably accommodate learning or other disability. 



   

 

Page 13 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"▪ An exception can be requested if the OJT position is not in demand, but other circumstances 

warrant the placement. 

All exceptions should be documented using the On-the-Job Training Exceptions form and submitted 

to WSW prior to the start of the OJT. 

1.3. Reimbursement Requirements 

If an employer is requesting a reimbursement rate above 50%, the Subrecipient must set up a 

screening tool to ensure consideration of the criteria below. In order for an employer to be eligible to 

receive 51% to 75% reimbursement, the OJT position must be in a demand occupation or 

industry according to the Local Demand Training Investment List. In addition, the Subrecipient must 

consider the following criteria and document determination in file and case notes: 

▪ Characteristics of the participant with an emphasis on someone with barriers to employment as 

defined in WIOA Section 3(24);  

▪ Size of the employer with an emphasis on engaging small businesses in OJT opportunities;  

▪ Quality of employer-provided training. More consideration should be given to employers 

offering an industry-recognized credential or advancement opportunity;  

▪ The number of participants the employer agrees to sponsor. Consideration should be on 

number of OJT’s compared to company size;  

▪ Wage and benefit level of the participant. Consideration should be given to employers that 

offer an increase in wage and benefit level at the completion of the OJT and/or during retention 

period;  

▪ Employer attestation, in writing, that it is not delinquent in unemployment insurance or workers’ 

compensation taxes, penalties, and/or interest.  

NOTE: OJTs and ITAs can be combined as long as the total cost of the OJT does not exceed the 

maximum funding cap of $5,000 for that specific occupation. Exceptions require prior approval 

from the WSW program manager. 

1.4. Forms  

Subrecipient will develop and implement standard OJT forms using the requirements within this 

policy, DOL law, and state policy. All documentation listed below must be signed and stored 

according to record retention policies in the participant’s file. All documents may be signed 

electronically by following WSW Electronic Signature Process Policy #2005. Subrecipient will develop 

and implement the following forms: 

• On-the-Job Training Employer Checklist to be completed prior to OJT start date 

• On-the-Job Training Agreement and Rules to be completed prior to OJT start date 

• On-the-Job Training Plan and Instructions to be completed within 2 weeks of OJT start date 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/2005-Electronic-Signature-Process.pdf


   

 

Page 14 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"• On-the-Job Supplemental Training Plan  

• On-the-Job Training Exception Request  

• On-the-Job Training Plan Modification  

• On-the-Job Training Invoice  

 

1.5. Monitoring 

The Subrecipient is responsible for monitoring the OJT during the term of the training. This includes 

employer check-ins, to ensure satisfaction with the employee and onsite training. In addition, ensuring 

all required paperwork is completed thoroughly and on time.  

  



   

 

Page 15 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"2. Occupational Skills Training 

2.1. Purpose 

Occupational skills training (OST) is an organized program of study that provides specific vocational 

skills that lead to proficiency in performing actual tasks and technical functions required by certain 

occupational fields at entry, intermediate, or advanced levels.  

2.2. Requirements 

OSTs must be: 

• Outcome-oriented and focused on an occupational goal specified in the ISS; 

• Of sufficient duration to impart the skills needed to meet the occupational goal; 

• Designed to lead to the attainment of a recognized postsecondary credential;  

• Aligned with in-demand industry sectors or occupations in the local area; and 

• Meet the quality standards in WIOA sec. 123. 

 

2.3.  Procedures 

OST may be used independently to document a training service, or in conjunction with an Individual 

Training Account which allows for a more comprehensive training that contains multiple training 

components and associated costs.  

For example, if a participant is taking part in a course of study, such as phlebotomy training, which is 

a pre-requisite to learn skills to enter an occupation, the service ismay be entered as an OST without 

ITA. If a participant’s ISS occupation goal requires multiple pre-requisites and training such as a CNA, 

an ITA ismay be created for the OST service. 

2.3. Individual Training Account 

(To be followed for Youth, Adult, and Dislocated Worker populations and all applicable funding 

sources) 

2.1.3.1. Purpose 

Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title I-B training services for enrolled 

participants can be provided through Individual Training Accounts (ITAs). ITAs are funded with WIOA 

Title 1-B Adult and Dislocated Worker funds and beginning July 1, 2017 are allowed for enrolled 

WIOA Out-of-School Youth participants age 16 – 24. These guidelines must also be followed by 

Subrecipients for all other funding sources that allow for ITA’s within our workforce development area. 

Trainees are expected to take an active role in managing their employment future through the use of 

ITAs, among other resources. Enrolled trainees receiving training under this approach will receive 

information they need (e.g., skills assessment, labor market conditions and trends, training vendor 

performance) to make a self-informed choice about their own employment future – and the training to 

support their decision. 



   

 

Page 16 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"These procedures apply to WSW funded programs within the SW Washington Workforce 

Development Area comprised of Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum Counties. 

WIOA regulations allow the state or local Board to impose limits on the dollar amount and/or duration 

of ITAs as long as those limits are not implemented in a manner that undermines the Act’s 

requirement for providing training services while maximizing customer choice in the selection of an 

eligible training provider. Limits to ITA’s may be established in these ways: 

▪ Limits for each customer, based on the needs identified in the individual employment plan; or 

▪ Policy decisions to establish a range of amounts and/or a maximum amount applicable to all 

ITAs. 

An ITA is a training option available to eligible and appropriate customers when it is determined by a 

case manager that they will be unable to obtain or retain employment through career services alone. 

An ITA is limited in cost, duration, and must lead to employment in an approved demand occupation. 

Training services funded through an ITA are defined as one or more courses or classes that, upon 

successful completion, lead to a: 

• Certificate or associate degree; or 

• Competency or skill recognized by other credentials; or  

• Training regimen that provides customers with additional skills or competencies generally 

recognized by employers and WSW. 

Note: ITAs are not appropriate for skill-building services that do not rise to the level of occupational 

skills training, including individualized services such as workforce preparation activities or short-term 

prevocational services. Individualized services may include literacy, internships, work experiences, 

and other activities that are intended to prepare individuals for work but do not provide formal 

occupational skills training and do not lead to a credential. Short-term prevocational training may 

include the development of learning skills, communication skills, interviewing skills, punctuality, 

personal maintenance skills, professional conduct, or other non-occupation-specific topics that are 

intended to prepare individuals for unsubsidized employment or training. 

 

2.2.3.2. Requirements 

ITAs are not entitlements and shall be provided to participants on the basis of an individualized 

assessment of the person’s job readiness, employment and training needs, financial, social and 

supportive needs, labor market demand, and potential for successful completion. The participant’s 

Individual Employment Plan (IEP) shall provide the justification for all services to be given including 

the appropriate combination of training and other services for the participant to achieve their 

employment goals. Priority must be given to enrolled and otherwise eligible veterans and their 



   

 

Page 17 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"spouses under the Jobs for Veterans Act (see WSW Veteran’s Priority of Services and Eligibility 

Policy #3019). 

When awarding an ITA, the registering Subrecipient assumes full (program) financial responsibility for 

the registrant, even when training is provided in another workforce area jurisdiction. The Subrecipient 

awarding the ITA will be designated as the “area of registration” for anyone in training, thereby 

identifying the source of any future ITA funding for the trainee, regardless of where the training is 

provided. The financial responsibility of the registering Subrecipient (area of registration) extends to 

supportive services. Emergency job or program counseling may be provided in either area of 

registration in which the training occurs. 

Prior to the issuance of an ITA, participants must receive an assessment and career planning if the 

Subrecipient determines the individual is unlikely or unable, by only receiving career services, to 

retain employment that leads to economic self-sufficiency or wages comparable to or higher than 

wages from previous employment. Additionally, the Subrecipient must also determine that the training 

the individual receives would result in employment leading to self-sufficiency or wages comparable to 

or higher than wages from previous employment. The Subrecipient must also determine that the 

individual has the skills and qualifications to successfully participate in and complete the training. 

After which, a customer may be considered for referral for training services and ITAs. Customers, 

who have been assessed and identified with specific barriers to employment, may be issued ITAs 

only after their specific barriers have been addressed. 

Funding for training is limited to customers who are unable to obtain other grant assistance for 

training or who have a financial need that exceeds the assistance available from other sources. 

Training providers must consider the availability of Pell Grants and other grant sources to pay for 

training costs, so that WIOA funds supplement rather than replace the other sources of training 

grants. Training funds can be used for one quarter/semester or multiple quarters/semester depending 

on individual’s needs. Participant’s Individual Employment Plan should describe the training timeline 

including before and after ITA investment. The timeline should include certificates/credentials/degrees 

earned or anticipated to earn for the duration of the training plan and when is the participant projected 

to enter employment. 

Once awarded, the participant must be registered in approved training within 90 days of designation 

of the ITA award. 

Individual Employment Plan (IEP)/ Needs Assessment 

The individual employment plan is an individualized career service, that is jointly developed by the 

participant and case manager. The plan is an ongoing strategy to identify employment goals, 

achievement objectives, and an appropriate combination of services for the participant to achieve the 

employment goals. 

A thorough assessment of each customer should be done prior to final approval of an ITA. 

Recommended assessment criteria include: 

http://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3019-VeteransPriorityofServiceandEligibility.pdf
http://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3019-VeteransPriorityofServiceandEligibility.pdf


   

 

Page 18 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"• Customer's educational level; 

• Previous skills training; 

• Employment readiness level; 

• Career goals; 

• Customer's aptitude for the selected training; 

• Availability and length of training; 

• Cost of training; 

• Financial ability of customer to undertake and complete training; and 

• Potential for a customer to obtain employment at a livable wage. 

The ultimate choice of an employment goal and subsequent training program requires careful 

consideration of a variety of factors. It is strongly recommended that in addition to taking into account 

a customer’s personal interests, Career Fit, or other occupational matching tools, and/or aptitude 

assessments be utilized to validate and ensure an appropriate match. 

Pre-Requisite to Skill Training Programs 

Prerequisite training to a vocational training program may be funded if it is required by the educational 

institution and ultimately leads to a credential in a demand occupation. Academic training may be 

approved if it meets specific requirements for certification, licensing, or specific skills necessary for an 

occupation within the demand occupations listed. 

CNA Pre-Requisites to Training 

Effective August 24, 2021 all participants registering for CNA training through WSW funding must 

agree to enroll and participate in all of the following courses before being accepted for participation in 

a WorkSource or Next CNA funded program. This means that the process developed must allow for 

an extended eligibility period of time for participants to complete the preliminary courses. 

Preliminary courses include: 

• Diabetes Care 

• Mental Health 

• Dementia Training 

• Nurse Delegation 

• Medical Terminology 

• Electronic Health Records 

• Typing with exam of 50wpm  

The participant file must document that all courses above were either included in the course 

curriculum or as separate completed courses. The case notes must document each course 

completion, and services should be attached to the program enrollment as appropriate. Case 

managers should be aware of the testing along the way and certificates received to assess if a 



   

 

Page 19 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"measurable skill gain was achieved. A measurable skill gain should be documented according to 

policy. 

Eligible Training Providers 

An ITA can only be issued to training provided by an educational institution that is on the State’s ETP. 

Most common the training will be listed on the Washington State Eligible Training Provider List 

(ETPL) and in a program also listed on the ETPL but can also be listed on Oregon ETPL or another 

state’s list. This information is posted on the Internet at: http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/ . 

WSW, in partnership with the state, will identify training providers whose performance qualifies them 

to receive WIOA funds to train adults and dislocated workers. These include post-secondary 

educational institutions, national apprenticeship programs, community-based organizations and 

private organizations, other public or private providers. 

Out-of-State / Out-of-Area Providers: All training programs must be within a reasonable commute of 

WSW area. Out-of-the area training programs that are not within commuting, may be approved on a 

case-by-case basis pending the customer’s demonstrated ability to incur all extraordinary costs (e.g.: 

living expenses). All approved training must be located within the United States, and those training 

providers must be listed on that state’s eligible training provider list. 

Satisfactory Progress in Training 

Trainees are required to make satisfactory progress in training to access all payments of their ITA. 

Satisfactory progress is defined as: 

▪ The trainees’s grade point average does not fall below 2.0 for more than one consecutive 

quarter or semester; 

▪ The trainee maintains a grade point average sufficient to graduate from, or receive certification 

in, their approved area of study; and 

▪ The trainee is completing sufficient credit hours to finish their approved course of study within 

the timeframe established under their approved training plan. 

▪ In the case of self-paced or non-graded learning programs, satisfactory progress means 

participating in classes and passing certification examinations within the time frame 

established under their approved training plan. 

Contact with the employment counselor/case manager and documentation of satisfactory progress in 

training must occur, at a minimum, at the end of each quarter during the lifetime of the training plan to 

ensure satisfactory progress in the training program. Generally, grade/competency reports or other 

appropriate information will be submitted by the trainee. If the trainee does not submit the required 

documentation, within the timeframe established by the employment counselor, the trainee will be 

declined future ITA funds until the information is received. 

http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/


   

 

Page 20 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Modification to IEP/Subsequent ITA 

A trainee may modify their IEP at any time without prior approval. However, if a subsequent ITA is 

requested the Subrecipient must receive prior approval from the WIOA Contractor Director and WSW 

Program Manager. In this case, justification supporting further training in order to obtain employment 

is required. 

2.3.3.3. Covered Costs 

Only required costs associated with approved training programs will be covered. Optional costs, 

including tuition and fees for coursework not included in the required course of study; textbooks not 

listed as required on course syllabi; and supplies, training materials, and tools which are not required 

for all participants in the training program, are not covered. Exceptions will be considered on a case-

by-case basis and must be pre-approved by the trainee’s WorkSource employment counselor. 

Required costs provided by the training provider that are covered through an ITA for an approved 

training program are as follows: 

• Tuition, enrollment fees, and other fees such as lab and testing required for coursework 

outlined in the required course of study; 

• Required textbooks and other supplies as listed on course syllabi; and 

• Pre-requisite coursework may be included under the maximum authorization and duration as 

long as it is obtained from an eligible training provider listed. 

Supportive services, if appropriate, shall be delivered pursuant to the WSW Supportive Services 

Policy #3005. Supportive services could include required supplies, tools and training materials as 

listed on the course syllabi or supply lists. 

Coordination Training Funds 

Subrecipients must consider the availability of other sources of grants, excluding loans, to pay for 

training costs so that WIOA funds are used to supplement but not supplant other sources. WIOA 

funds are intended to provide training services in instances when there is no grant assistance (or 

insufficient assistance) from other sources (i.e. Welfare-to-Work, Title IV Programs, and state-funded 

grants) to pay for those costs (20 CFR 663.320). The use of WIOA funds to pay down a loan of an 

otherwise eligible participant is prohibited; however, the mere existence of a federal loan must not 

impact eligibility determinations.  

Subrecipients must ensure that WIOA funds are not used to pay for training or services already 

covered by other sources. Training agreements, particularly with Pell-eligible institutions, should 

ensure:  

▪ The institution cannot bill or be paid twice for the same expenses. 

▪ Costs paid for by WIOA and by the Pell Grant are clearly identified and documented. 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies


   

 

Page 21 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"▪ Access is guaranteed to the WIOA participant’s financial aid records (such as the Student Aid 

Report (SAR)). 

In the case of performance-based contracts, liability for meeting performance benchmarks must 

remain with the school and the Subrecipient. If the contract conditions payment on the trainee’s 

successful completion and placement in the occupation trained for at the specified wage, the trainee 

shall not be liable to the school for WIOA funds withheld under a WIOA performance-based contract. 

The school should also be prohibited by the terms of the Training agreement from using Pell funds, or 

any other federal funding sources, to recoup WIOA funds withheld when outcomes are not met. 

Obligating Funds 

The training agreement will document a three-way commitment between the individual, the 

Subrecipient, and the training institution. As a three-way contract, this agreement could obligate 

funds. If additional ITA funds are required beyond the agreed upon amount, a new agreement could 

be awarded up to the maximum ITA funding limit. While ITA funds would be obligated through this 

process, the Subrecipient will have the flexibility to decide when to bill actual expenditures with the 

training provider. This system would have to address de-obligations as individuals receive additional 

resources and/or leave the training program prior to completion.  

WSW reserves the right to make exceptions to this policy, on a case-by-case basis, should individual 

circumstances warrant exception. 

 Availability of Funds 

Training resources for customers is contingent upon the availability of funds provided by WIOA. 

2.4.3.4. Limitations 

It is the intent of WSW to use ITA dollars to help eligible participants gain a self-sufficient wage and to 

primarily focus training “investments” on building skills for occupations determined to be in high 

demand and/or critical to the local economy. As a result, ITA funding through WSW will be limited to 

only those customers who reside or work in Washington State. Dislocated Workers who are program 

eligible as a result of lost employment from a job within any of the three counties may also receive 

ITA funding. 

In response to the target industry investment priorities identified in the Strategic Plan, WSW has 

established two occupational categories eligible for tuition assistance. WSW authorizes tuition 

assistance as follows: 

Occupations approved for ITA funding: 

In response to the target industry investment priorities identified in the Strategic Plan, WSW has 

established two occupational categories eligible for ITA funding. WSW authorizes ITA funding as 

follows: 



   

 

Page 22 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"• Demand Occupations:  Tuition assistance may be approved for occupations that WSW has 

determined to be in demand as listed on the Local Demand Training Investment List. All caps 

listed below are maximum amounts and for the duration of the training. 

Sector specific industries as follows: 

▪ Healthcare: $17,000 

▪ Manufacturing: $17,000 

▪ Technology: $17,000 

All other Demand Occupation Training: $11,000  

Duration of Training: Up to 3 years 

• Balanced Occupations:  A limited number of training services may be approved for 

occupations listed as “in balance” if evidence exists that the occupation pays a Self-Sufficient 

wage with adequate local demand as determined by WSW. Evidence may include results from 

a local skills panel, employer surveys, or other documentation that indicates the industry is 

experiencing difficulty finding qualified workers or is anticipated to experience a significant 

workforce loss due to future retirements.  

Maximum ITA Amount: $8,000 for the duration of training 

Duration of Training: Up to 3 years 

In no event shall an ITA carry a time or dollar balance after the program of training is either completed 

or terminated. 

2.5.3.5. Exceptions 

On an individual basis, WSW may waive local policy requirements for any individual with physical or 

sensory disabilities or other unusual circumstance and it has been determined that training is 

necessary for the individual to obtain employment. 

Under special circumstances and with proper justification, a request can be made to exceed the ITA 

funding limit, training duration or to authorize training in a not-in-demand or otherwise restricted 

occupation. In addition, an exception may be made on a case-by-case basis for those individuals 

seeking advanced degrees. 

A completed Request for Exception form and appropriate supporting documentation must be 

submitted to the WIOA Contractor Supervisor for review. If approved, the request will be forwarded to 

WSW for final determination and approval. 

2.6.3.6. Forms  

• Request for Exception Forms Exceed Funding Limit  

http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList


   

 

Page 23 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"• Request for Exception Form Not In Demand Occupation 

All forms can be downloaded from the WSW website.  

http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies


   

 

Page 24 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"3.4. Short Term Training 

(To be followed for all populations and all applicable funding sources) 

3.1.4.1. Purpose 

By law, short-term "prevocational services" are individualized career services which include the 

development of learning skills, communication skills, interviewing skills, punctuality, personal 

maintenance skills, professional conduct, or other non-occupation-specific topics,and professional 

conduct, to prepare individuals for unsubsidized employment or training. Providers may also provide 

short term training that does not qualify for ITA award butthat is necessary for employment. The 

training must follow all policies,  and guidance, and coded in ETO according to the Services Catalog. 

3.2.4.2. Requirements  

A participant must be eligible to receive Enhanced Career Services or Training Services before 

paying for a short term pre-vocational training. Training shall be provided to participants on the basis 

of an individualized assessment of the participant’s job readiness, employment and training needs, 

financial, social and supportive needs, labor market demand, and potential for successful completion. 

The participant’s Individual Employment Plan (IEP) or Individual Service Strategy (ISS) shall provide 

the justification for all services to be given including the appropriate combination of training and other 

services for the participant to achieve their employment goals. Priority must be given to enrolled and 

otherwise eligible veterans and their spouses under the Jobs for Veterans Act (WSW Veteran’s 

Priority of Services and Eligibility Policy #3019). 

Funding for training is limited to customers who are unable to obtain other grant assistance for 

training or who have a financial need that exceeds the assistance available from other sources. Many 

of these of trainings are coded as Enhanced Career Services, Individualized Career Services, Short 

Term Classroom Training, or Occupational Skills Training in ETO. Service type will depend on actual 

training provided. 

Procedures  

WSW has adopted the approved definition of prevocational skills, to include short-term or low-cost 

preparatory training lasting less than a week, or at a cost of $750 or less, as an enhanced career 

service and not funded through an ITA award. The Department of Labor has determined that adult 

literacy or basic computer literacy services are not part of the definition of training services under 

WIOA Title I-B. By WSW definition, 'English as a Second Language', (ESL) also falls under career 

services.  

Providers may not pay for a participant to go through training more than once. If the participant fails 

the course or does not complete the course, WIOA will not pay for the course again. Participants have 

the right for consumer choice and providers will do their best and follow the rules laid out by the law to 

allow for such a choice. For short term training, the training provider is not required to be on the State 

Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL) however it is strongly recommended. If the requested training 

provider is not on the ETPL, the Subrecipient must request that the training provider register for the 

ETPL.  

http://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3019-VeteransPriorityofServiceandEligibility.pdf
http://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3019-VeteransPriorityofServiceandEligibility.pdf


   

 

Page 25 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Participant Supportive Services provided to participants enrolled in pre-vocational training should 

receive the same level of support offered to those in other types of training funded by the WIOA. If the 

support is required to participate in training, it is not considered a “supportive service” it is considered 

part of the training cost. If it is not required for training, but necessary to continue training or gain 

employment it is considered a “supportive service”. If the support is a course requirement it must be 

written on the course syllabus or part of the registration paperwork for the training and a copy of the 

requirement documentation must be kept in the participant file as part of the training records. 

Providers must follow the WSW Supportive Service Policy #3005. 

3.3.4.3. Exceptions  

Exceptions may be considered on a case-by-case basis. Exceptions may include but are not limited 

to: training cost over allowed amount, training is over allowed length, etc. A request must be sent to 

the WSW Program Manager for review and approval prior to training start date. Email request is 

acceptable. 

  



   

 

Page 26 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"4.5. Transitional Jobs 

(To be followed for Adult and Dislocated Worker populations and WIOA funding) 

4.1.5.1. Purpose 

A transitional job is for WIOA enrolled Adults and Dislocated Workers. Transitional jobs can be 

effective solutions for individuals to gain necessary work experience that they would otherwise not be 

able to get through training or an OJT contract. The goal is to establish a work history for the 

individual, demonstrate work success, and develop skills that lead to entry into unsubsidized 

employment. The difference between a transitional job and an OJT contract is that in a transitional job 

there is no expectation that the individual will continue his or her hire with the employer after the work 

experience is complete. 

4.2.5.2. Procedures 

Subrecipients must follow the procedures outlined under Work Experience Sec 5.2. Transitional Job 

is provided as a “training service” and should be expended as such. 

4.3.5.3. Requirements  

Subrecipients may use not more than 10 percent of the funds allocated to the local area involved 

under WIOA section 133(b) to provide transitional jobs under subsection (c)(3) that: 

1. are time-limited work experiences that are subsidized and are in the public, private, or nonprofit 

sectors for individuals with barriers to employment who are chronically unemployed or have an 

inconsistent work history; 

2. are combined with comprehensive employment and supportive services; and 

3. are designed to assist the individuals described in subparagraph (A) to establish a work 

history, demonstrate success in the workplace, and develop the skills that lead to entry into 

and retention in unsubsidized employment. 

4. must be provided along with comprehensive career services and supportive services. 

4.4.5.4. Forms 

Subrecipients must complete the forms outlined under Work Experience Sec 5.4. 

4.5.5.5. Monitoring 

The Subrecipient is responsible for monitoring the work experience during the term of the training. 

This includes employer check-ins, to ensure satisfaction with the trainee and onsite training. In 

addition, ensuring all required paperwork is completed on time and thoroughly.   



   

 

Page 27 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"5.6. Work Experiences/Internships 

(To be followed for Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth populations and all applicable funding 

sources) 

5.1.6.1. Purpose 

Subrecipients may provide Work Experiences (WEX) and Internships opportunities for enrolled youth 

and adults using WIOA and other WSW funds to administer and pay wages. WEX/Internship 

opportunities must be provided within the SW Washington Workforce Development Area and 

neighboring workforce areas. 

WSW requires that all Work Experiences and Internships follow the guidelines and documentation 

requirements listed below. WEX/Internship participants can be enrolled in an adult and/or youth 

program. WEX/Internships are primarily designed to provide participants with an occupational 

certificate/credential in a designated demand industry, or school credit, or permanent employment 

with a WEX employer, or gain work history with necessary skills to make the participant more 

employable. For a list of demand occupations in our region please refer to the Local Training 

Investment List. A WEX/Internship is designed to be mutually beneficial for both a participant and a 

local employer. A WEX/Internship should never be utilized to replace an existing employee or 

position. WEX/Internships can be both subsidized and unsubsidized as defined below. 

Internships are subsidized industry placements for those participants who need work experience 

before they will be marketable for sustained employment. The goal is to provide job-ready participants 

with an opportunity to gain valuable work experience in the industry and area of employment 

identified in their Career/Employment Plan.  

Work Experiences (WEX) are primarily intended to teach good work habits and basic work skills such 

as appropriate dress, timeliness, respect, common courtesies, and basic task completion for those 

who have never worked or who have not worked for a significant amount of time. WEX are also 

intended to provide the participant an opportunity to explore career choices in targeted industries and 

develop basic occupational related skills. 

5.2.6.2. Procedures 

 

5.2.1.6.2.1.   Youth 

Youth WEX/Internships are available for participant’sparticipants ages 16-24 enrolled in a WSW 

funded youth program. According to WIOA Law, paid and unpaid work experiences have a 

component academic and occupational education, which may include: 

• summer employment opportunities and other employment opportunities available 

throughout the school year;  

• pre-apprenticeship programs;  

• internships and job shadowing; and  

• on-the-job training opportunities (see OJT Section 1) 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList
http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList


   

 

Page 28 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Through a youth WEX/Internship, the participant will achieve an occupational certificate/credential 

through the academic component, school credit or permanent employment with the employer. Where 

possible multiple achievements above are desired. A work experience is successfully completed 

when a participant achieves his/her stated learning goals and the participant and employer are 

satisfied with the participation in the work experience as stated in the post-assessments.  

Participation in a WEX/Internship activity shall be for a reasonable amount of time, no less than 100 

hours, between 90 and 240 hours, or as referenced in specific grant requirements. When 

determining the duration of a WEX activity, the following must be considered: 

• Objectives of the WEX, as defined by the participant’s employment and training goals. 

• Length of time necessary for the participant to learn the skills identified in the learning plan. 

• The employer has sufficient quantity of meaningful work activities for the participant. 

• WEX budget, including employer, WIOA, or other project funds. 

All activity must be documented in the participant’s Individual Service Strategy (ISS) and learning 

plan. A WEX/Internship placement must be age appropriate and directly aligned with participant’s 

career goals listed in the ISS.  

WSW expects that Subrecipients facilitate employer paid WEX/Internships for all participants. 

However, if an employer is unable to pay for the wages, WIOA or other project funds may be utilized 

to pay wages for WEX/Internships. All youth WEX/Internships must follow the requirements as 

outlined below. 

Note: Job Shadows as an Unpaid Work Experience does not have specific hour requirements, yet still 

must meet the items to be considered in determining the duration and activity of a WEX. 

 Youth providers must track program funds spent on paid and unpaid work experiences, including 

wages and staff costs for the development and management of work experiences, and report such 

expenditures as part of the WIOA Title I Youth financial reporting. The percentage of funds spent on 

work experience is calculated based on the youth funds expended for work experience.  

Allowable expenses that count toward the WEX expenditure requirement include: 

• Wages paid for participation in a work experience. 

• Staff time working to identify and develop a work experience opportunity, including staff time 

spent working with WEX Host Sites to identify and develop the work experience. 

• Staff time working with WEX Host Sites to ensure a successful work experience, including staff 

time spent managing the work experience. 

• Staff time spent evaluating the work experience. 

• Intern work experience orientation sessions. 



   

 

Page 29 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"• WEX Host Site work experience orientation sessions. 

• Classroom training or the required academic education component directly related to the work 

experience. 

• Supportive services necessary for participation in the work experience. 

• Incentive payments directly tied to the completion of work experience. 

• Employability skills/job readiness training to prepare Young Adults for a work experience. 

Expenses that do not count towards the 20% WEX expenditure requirement include: 

• Leveraged resources. 

 

5.2.2.6.2.2. Adult 

Adult WEX/Internships are available for participants ages 18 and older enrolled in a WSW funded 

Adult program. Participation in a WEX/Internship activity shall be for a reasonable amount of time and 

is required to be between 90 and 240 hours, or as referenced in specific grant requirements.  

5.2.3.6.2.3.   Co-Enrollment 

Co-Enrolled WEX/Internships are available for participants ages 18-24 enrolled in a WSW funded 

youth and adult program. Providers must discuss participant program options and choose either 

youth WEX/Internship or adult WEX/Internship participation. All discussions should be based on 

participant need and fit. It is the expectation of WSW that providers conduct regular and timely 

Subrecipient check-ins regarding co-enrolled participants. The Subrecipient paying for the 

WEX/Internship will be responsible for all associated paperwork, WEX/Internship services, data 

tracking, compliance, and follow up. 

5.2.4.6.2.4.  Monitoring 

The Subrecipient is responsible for monitoring the WEX during the term of the training. This includes 

employer checkinscheck-ins, to ensure satisfaction with the trainee and onsite training. In addition, 

ensuring all required paperwork is completed on time and thoroughly.  

5.3.6.3. Requirements 

WEX/Internship requirements are the same regardless of program enrollment unless specified. 

1. The duties the participant will perform will expose them to and prepare them for post-

secondary education into an “in demand” or “balanced” industry and/or entry into an “in 

demand” or “balanced” occupation as listed on the Local Training Investment List that is in a 

WSW designated target industry.  

2. Participants may be paid a wage in line with the position and industry, with the minimum pay to 

be the prevailing State minimum wage or as reference in a specific grant requirement. The 

Subrecipient will be the employer of record for those participants enrolled in a paid 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList


   

 

Page 30 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"WEX/internship. Labor standards apply in any paid WEX/internship where an 

employee/employer relationship exists, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

3. Each placement must contain a measurable academic and occupational component described 

in the Learning Plan. 

4. Placements must be in the private sector, the nonprofit sector, or the public sector within Clark, 

Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum counties or in other bordering counties within Washington and 

Oregon with approval of a waiver by the WSW Program Manager.  

5. All WEX/Internship placements must include all the required documentation listed below and 

stored in the participant’s file. 

6. A placement interview should be conducted by program staff: applicant must demonstrate 

professional readiness for placement. It is encouraged and considered ideal for the work site 

supervisor to be included in the placement interview, but is not a requirement.  

7. The responsible Subrecipient must contact the supervisor at a minimum once every two 

weeks; or more frequently as needed to ensure a successful experience.  

8. It is recommended by WSW that each Subrecipient supply a manual to the site supervisor that 

is reviewed with them prior to the commencement of the WEX/internship. The manual must 

outline procedures and responsibilities for participation in a WEX/internship. Required topics 

include intern orientation, human resource polices such as timesheets and time off, 

recommendations for monitoring/supervision, communication with case manager, prohibited 

and restricted activities, and workplace safety.  

9. For all WIOA Youth Subrecipients, a minimum of 20% of your contract expenditures must be 

spent on paid and unpaid work experiences that have a component of academic and 

occupational education which may include summer employment opportunities or year-round 

opportunities (WEX), pre-apprenticeship programs, internships, job shadowing and on-the-job 

training. Expenditures may include personnel time to administer the WEX and participant 

wages. 

5.4.6.4. Forms/Documentation 

All documentation listed below must be signed and stored according to record retention policies in the 

participant’s file. All documents may be signed electronically by following WSW Electronic Signature 

Process Policy #2005. Subrecipient will develop and implement standard WEX forms using the 

requirements within this policy, DOL law, and state policy. At a minimum Subrecipient will develop the 

following forms: 

Training Agreement: An agreement made between the employer and Subrecipient that outlines the 

program requirements and expectations. The training agreement must be fully executed prior to the 

start of the work experience/internship by having the employer and the program staff sign. The 

agreement may be used for group training with a single work site provided that the learning plan, job 

http://www.dol.gov/whd/flsa/
http://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/2005-Electronic-Signature-Process.pdf
http://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/2005-Electronic-Signature-Process.pdf


   

 

Page 31 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"description, work conditions, wages, and term of the agreement are the same for all participants 

covered under this agreement. 

Learning Plan: A signed agreement between the Worksite Supervisor, the participant, and the case 

manager that describes the goals and expectations during the WEX/Internship. The learning plan 

must be signed prior to training start date. 

Pre-Assessment: An assessment of the participant’s skills at the beginning of the WEX/Internship. 

The Pre-Assessment must be completed during the first two weeks of the placement by the worksite 

supervisor. 

Post-Assessment:  An assessment of the participant’s skills at the end of the WEX/Internship. The 

assessment is intended to show improvement or lack of during the WEX/Internship. The Post-

Assessment must be completed the last day of the WEX/Internship by the worksite supervisor.  

Waiver Request: On an individual basis, WSW may waive local policy requirements for any individual 

with physical or sensory disabilities or other extenuating circumstance and it has been determined 

that the desired work experience or internship is necessary for the individual to obtain relevant work 

experience. A waiver request must be submitted for participants pursuing a WEX/Internship in a “not 

in demand” occupation according to the Local Training Investment List . A completed WEX/Internship 

Waiver Request form and appropriate supporting documentation must be submitted to the WSW 

Program Manager for review. Waiver must be fully executed prior to the training start date. 

Timesheet: The participant’s work hours must be recorded using a timesheet. In addition, the 

timesheet may be used to assess the participant’s skills throughout the paid WEX/Internship. All 

participant timesheets (copies or originals) must be kept in the participant file for each pay period. 

5.5.6.5. Data Entry 

▪ For purposes of WIOA, all adult WEX/Internships will be entered in ETO as a “career service”. 

▪ For the purposes of WIOA, all youth WEX/Internships will be entered in ETO as a “training 

service”. 

▪ For all other funding sources use the data entry requirements described in the contract/grant.  

http://workforcesw.org/providers#LocalTrainingInvestmentList


   

 

Page 32 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"6.7. Entrepreneurial Training 

(To be followed for all populations and all applicable funding sources) 

6.1.7.1. Purpose 

Section 134(c)(3)(D)(vii) of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) cites 

“entrepreneurial training” (also known as self-employment training) as an allowable training service 

for participants. Entrepreneurial Skills Training is also a required element under the WIOA youth 

program as found in Section 134 (c)(2)(L). Individuals enrolled in WIOA must be provided the 

opportunity to enroll in a self-employment program as described in RCW 50.62.030. Washington state 

established the Self-Employment Assistance Program as described in RCW 50.20.250 to assist 

unemployed individuals and create new businesses and job opportunities. 

6.2.7.2. Requirements 

Entrepreneurial services are available for individuals who, after interview, evaluation or assessment 

are determined to be unlikely or unable to obtain or retain employment that leads to self-sufficiency or 

earn higher wages than previous employment through career services alone. The participant must be 

determined to be in need of training services and possess the skills and qualifications to participate 

successfully in the selected program.  

Subrecipients must ensure that the selected training is suitable for the individual participant based on 

a documented assessment and interview or evaluation with the case manager or mentor to determine 

entrepreneurship is a good fit. Subrecipient may use job matching tools such as Career Fit. It is 

important to ensure federal funds are spent on participants that are in need and have the appropriate 

skills/knowledge to be successful as an entrepreneur. Documentation of completed assessments 

and/or interview will be stored electronically in the participant file via ETO. 

Individuals eligible for WIOA must be provided the opportunity to enroll in self-employment or 

entrepreneurial training programs on the same basis as they are provided the opportunity to enroll in 

other WIOA-funded training, which is consistent with WIOA customer choice principles.  

Subrecipients must notify all WIOA-eligible individuals of the availability of self-employment training, 

including but not limited to WIOA-eligible training providers. 

Training must be in an in demand industry/occupation and training or support must result in the 

participant earning a self-sufficient wage. 

Prior to using entrepreneurial dollars all other resources must be explored and researched. 

Subrecipients may work in partnership with such programs as the local Chamber of Commerce, Small 

Business Association, Self-Employment Assistance Program (SEAP), and community colleges. WIOA 

funds can be used to supplement these other programs to ensure success. 

6.3.7.3. Available Training Options 

All WIOA Subrecipients will provide information on local training options for entrepreneurial training 

throughout the WorkSource system to both staff and customers. Employment Specialists will provide 

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=50.62.030
https://esd.wa.gov/jobs-and-training/self-employment-assistance-program
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=50.20.250


   

 

Page 33 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"specific information regarding community organizations that work with those who are interested in 

starting businesses and self-employment.  

Available opportunities to share program options include, but are not limited to:  

• Coursework options at local community and technical colleges  

• Training options available at other approved providers  

• Information available at local WorkSource and Affiliate offices  

• Hotlinks and referral to self-employment organizations offering specific business start-up 

information and assistance with courses already on the Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL) 

will be immediately available to individuals eligible for training under WIOA, where appropriate. 

Training Providers not on the ETPL will be encouraged to apply at the Career Bridge website.  

Training considered to be an ITA must be on the state’s ETPL. Also allowable are short-term trainings 

categorized as Individualized Career Services. Both training services to be classified in ETO as 

“entrepreneurial training”. 

Available training options could include, but are not limited to: 

• Refresher training, certifications, or licensing requirements that are identified in business plan. 

Required training and/or certifications must be documented as required prior to expending the 

funds; 

• Courses on managing business finances and fiscal reporting, such as how to read profit and 

loss reports; 

• Course on how to market the business, including evaluating the market; 

• Course on how to manage the business;  

• Course on how to build a successful business (key elements that are needed); 

• Course on understanding the customers; 

• Course on sustainability;  

• Course on how to write a business plan 

Training and certifications will only be paid once, it is an expectation of the participant to pay any 

costs after the initial support.  

Entrepreneurial coursework should provide adequate information for the WIOA participant to begin 

business startup. The coursework may include other components, but at a minimum, the WIOA 

participant must develop or initiate a business plan. (See below for definition of business plan.) 

http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/


   

 

Page 34 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Subrecipient should document progress of business plan by receiving copies of the plan or by 

verifying the plan progress. Document in case notes or upload into ETO. 

DEFINITION: Business Plan – The business plan describes the business (type of industry or sector, 

legal structure, product/service to be sold, projected customer base, and profits), market strategies 

(definition of market, projected market share, pricing, distribution and sales), competitive analysis 

(identifying and analyzing competitors’ strengths and weaknesses), design/development (product, 

market and organizational development), operation/management (organizational structure, personnel, 

operating expenses, capital requirements, costs of goods) and finances (income statement, cash 

flow, balance sheet). 

6.4.7.4. Covered Costs 

WIOA entrepreneurial training dollars can pay for tuition, short-term training courses, supportive 

services directly related to self-employment, enrollment fees, and other fees required for coursework 

outlined in the required course of study and required textbooks and other supplies as listed on course 

syllabi. Includes items considered supportive services. Case managers must ensure case notes are 

thorough to explain the source and line item funding the expense. Total entrepreneurial training will 

not exceed $2,500 per participant. 

Supportive services, if appropriate, shall be delivered pursuant to the WSW Supportive Services 

Policy #3005. Supportive services should be given to support the participant in training or gain 

employment and must be provided in conjunction with a career or training service. Support could 

include supplies and tools not listed on the course syllabi or supply lists or transportation assistance, 

certification fees (one time only), and licensing costs (one time only). WIOA funds should not be used 

for space rent, insurance costs, loan payments, employee payroll, and other disallowed costs listed in 

the WSW Supportive Services Policy. Justification and documentation of these costs is imperative 

and must be kept in participant file (electronic or hard copy). For entrepreneurial supportive services 

only, these services can be charged to the entrepreneurial training line item, but documented in ETO 

as a supportive service. 

6.5.7.5. Data Entry 

WIOA Entrepreneurial Training must be documented in ETO as “entrepreneurial training” and the 

participant must be marked as self-employment as an employment goal. All services must be 

recorded accordingly. If the participant is successfully employed as an entrepreneur, the Subrecipient 

must obtain documentation of self-employment wages to be used as supplemental data for 

performance. Documentation should be uploaded to ETO. 

  

http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies


   

 

Page 35 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"7.8. Incumbent Worker 

(To be followed for Adult, Dislocated Worker, State Rapid Response, and all specific Incumbent 

Worker Training funding sources) 

7.1.8.1. Purpose 

Incumbent worker training is designed to increase the competitiveness of the employee and 

employer. Per WIOA Section 134(d)(4)(A)(i) and proposed 20 CFR 680.780, WSW may reserve and 

expend up to 20 percent of their combined adult and dislocated worker formula allotments for 

incumbent worker training.  

This training is designed to meet the special requirements of an employer (or group of employers) to 

retain a skilled workforce or avert the need to lay off employees.  

7.2.8.2. Requirements 

Training must meet funding requirements and generally focus on upgrading an employee’s skills 

related to the company’s core business. Incumbent worker training is designed to either assist 

workers in obtaining the skills necessary to retain employment or to avert layoff and must increase 

both a participant’s and a company’s competitiveness. Training is designed to ensure that employees 

of a company are able to gain the skills necessary to retain employment and advance within the 

company or to provide the skills necessary to avert a layoff. The training should, wherever possible, 

allow the participant to gain industry-recognized certificate or credential, and ultimately should lead to 

an increase in wages.  

7.2.1.8.2.1. Incumbent Workers 

An incumbent worker must be all of the following:  

1. Employed – an individual working a minimum of 30 hours a week;  

2. Meet the Fair Labor Standards Act requirements for an employer-employee relationship;  

3. Have an established employment history with the employer for six (6) months or more; and 

4. Residents of Clark, Cowlitz, or Wahkiakum County or if employer is located in service area. 

If incumbent worker training is provided to a cohort of employees, not every employee in the cohort 

must have an established employment history with the employer for six months or more as long as a 

majority (51 percent or more) of the employees being trained meet the employment history 

requirement. 

Per proposed 20 CFR 680.780, an incumbent worker does not necessarily have to meet the eligibility 

requirements for career and training services for adults and dislocated workers under this Act. 

In order to provide training to incumbent workers using either local Adult and/or Dislocated Worker 

WIOA formula funds or WIOA statewide discretionary funds provided by the Governor, the 

Subrecipient must set up a screening tool to ensure consideration of the following factors. In addition, 

the Subrecipient must document determination in file and case notes. 

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://wtb.wa.gov/Documents/TitleIandTitleIIIPrograms.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/whd/flsa/
http://wtb.wa.gov/Documents/TitleIandTitleIIIPrograms.pdf


   

 

Page 36 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"7.2.2.8.2.2. Eligible Employers 

Employer must meet the following requirements to be eligible for training: 

▪ Must be a Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum County employer (either physically located in 

service area or employ residents of the service area). If employer is located outside of our 3 

county service area, reimbursement of training costs will only be for those incumbent workers 

that are residents of Clark, Cowlitz or Wahkiakum County; 

▪ Must demonstrate that incumbent worker training will increase ability to create and/or retain 

jobs;  

▪ Must be current in unemployment insurance and workers’ compensation taxes, penalties, 

and/or interest or related payment plan; 

▪ The quality of the training (e.g., industry-recognized credentials, advancement opportunities); 

and 

▪ Must be classified under targeted industries defined in the Strategic Plans of WSW, CREDC, 

and CEDC. See Local Demand Training Investment List for occupation list and/or Strategic 

Plans for current targeted industries.  

The following factors must be a consideration when determining employer’s eligibility: 

▪ The characteristics of the incumbent workers to be trained, specifically the extent to which they 

historically represent individuals with barriers to employment as defined in WIOA Section 

3(24), and how they would benefit from retention or advancement;  

▪ The number of participants the employer plans to train or retrain;  

▪ The wage and benefit levels of participants (before and after training);  

▪ The employer must not have laid off workers and relocated within 120 days of receiving 

incumbent worker training services; and  

Subrecipients must document the factors that were considered in approving an incumbent worker 

training project with an employer. Subrecipient must include in the employer agreement that all 

trainees were hired a minimum of 6 months prior as a requirement and employer agrees to abide 

by the terms and conditions of the grant, including reporting and employee documentation. 

 

Displacement Restriction:  If an employer has recently relocated and the relocation resulted in any 

employee losing his or her job at the original location, the incumbent worker training services may not 

be provided until the company has operated at the new location for 120 days. 

Employer Share of Training Costs:  

http://www.swwdc.org/service-providers/lti-list.html
http://www.swwdc.org/about-swwdc/strategicplan.html
http://www.swwdc.org/about-swwdc/strategicplan.html
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf


   

 

Page 37 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Per WIOA Sections 134(d)(4)(C) and 134(d)(4)(D) and proposed 20 CFR 680.820, employers 

participating in incumbent worker training are required to pay the non-WIOA (non-federal) share of 

the cost of providing training to their incumbent workers. The employer share is based on the size of 

the workforce (wages paid to the participant while in training can be included as part of that share and 

the share can be provided as cash or in-kind that is fairly evaluated) as follows: 

▪ At least 10 percent of the cost for employers with 50 or fewer employees  

▪ At least 25 percent of the cost for employers with 51 to 100 employees  

▪ At least 50 percent of the cost for employers with more than 100 employees  

Per WIOA Section 181 (b)(1) and 20 CFR 683.250(a), WIOA Title I funds cannot be spent on the 

wages of incumbent employees during their participation in IWT. Incumbent worker wages paid by the 

employer during IWT cannot be included in the cost of training. 

Examples: 

ABC company has two locations in your workforce development area. Location 1 has 35 employees 

and Location 2 has 25 employees, with a combined total of 60 employees. ABC company would pay 

at least 25 percent of the cost of the training, regardless of how many of those employees need IWT. 

Conversely, if that same company had a total of 35 employees and only one location, the company 

would pay at least 10 percent of the cost of the training. 

ABC company has two locations in your workforce development area. Location 1 has 50 employees 

and Location 2 has 55 employees for a total of 105 employees. Only employees at Location 2 need 

IWT. The employer’s cost is at least 25 percent of the cost, not 50 percent. 

Type(s) of training and number of training providers are also factors to consider. ABC company needs 

the same IWT for 35 employees in Location 1 and 25 employees in Location 2. You may find that two 

different training providers are needed, in which case the employer’s cost would be at least 10 

percent of the cost of each location. 

Subrecipients must track and document employer cost share contributions.   

7.2.3.8.2.3. Training 

Training can be provided through community and technical colleges, vocational-technical centers, 

state colleges and universities, licensed and certified private entities/institutions, industry specific 

consulting or training organizations, professional associations, or credentialing entities, or the 

business itself (through in-house trainers). If in-house training is provided, it must be for training to 

support new skills that will make the employer more competitive or avert layoffs. Training must be 

procured using employer or Subrecipient’s procurement policy.  

1. Employer Secured Training  

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://wtb.wa.gov/Documents/TitleIandTitleIIIPrograms.pdf


   

 

Page 38 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"a. When in-house training is provided by an employee of the employer, the reimbursement 

amount is based on the employer share calculation. For example, the employer purchases 

new machinery, but now must train staff in its use. One employee has been trained to use 

it, and has the capacity and skill to train others, but calculations indicate it will be costly to 

devote that employee to the task because they would not be able to perform their own job 

while training staff. That employee’s wages when providing the training would be included 

in the cost of training, and therefore, part of the cost share calculation.  

b. When the training provider is secured by the employer, Subrecipient procurement is not 

required. The Subrecipient enters into an agreement with the employer to reimburse for the 

WIOA federal share cost of the training. The agreement with the employer must document, 

at a minimum: 

i. The training being provided;  

ii. That the cost is reasonable for what is being provided; and  

iii. The approximate dollar amounts, both paid by the employer and paid by the 

Subrecipient for the federal share. 

7.3.8.3. Procedures 

Approval Process  

Employers are approved on a case-by-case basis by the WSW contracted Subrecipient based on the 

Priority of Business and Statement of Work. Using the criteria listed, the training approval process 

must be developed by Subrecipient and approved by WSW Program Manager. The Incumbent 

Worker Training Application will be reviewed and a decision made by Subrecipient Designee using 

the formal process developed by Subrecipient. 

Priority of Business Selection 

WSW and/or approved Subrecipient will use the following criteria for ranking priority during approval 

of training proposals: 

1. Training meets the requirement of the funding source; 

2. Economic Development Projects involving a business expansion or retention (existing site 

expansion or relocation to new site within Southwest Washington) or recruited companies 

(within two years of relocation to Clark, Cowlitz, or Wahkiakum Counties); 

3. Training for labor skill sets that are in critical shortage within the region; 

4. Traded Sector small to medium business ($2 million to $20 million annual sales); 

5. Companies that have not previously received subsidized training through WSW or a WSW 

partner within the last two years; 

6. If applicable, a written union letter of support for training activities involving union positions. 



   

 

Page 39 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Subrecipients must document the priority and ranking that was considered in approving an incumbent 

worker training proposal. It is the expectation that if an employer’s proposal meets multiple criteria 

they are ranked higher than a proposal that meets fewer criterions. 

7.4.8.4. Incumbent Worker Training for Layoff Aversion using Rapid Response 

Funds 

1. An IWT program conducted with rapid response funds must be tied to a layoff aversion strategy 

for a threat of layoff. For the definition of Layoff Aversion, see Definitions section above. 

2. An IWT as part of layoff aversion must be above and beyond the normal training offered by 

businesses to their employees. Rapid response resources must not supplant private funds in 

these situations. 

3. As per WIOA Final Rule commentary on 20 CFR 682.320 as it relates to incumbent worker 

training and TEGL 19-16, Section 18.A, “Layoff aversion strategies and activities are designed to 

prevent, or minimize the duration of, unemployment resulting from layoffs.” 

4. Individuals may need assistance to maintain or retain a good job by enhancing their skills or 

learning new technologies and procedures in an ever-changing economic environment. Without 

appropriate training that allows existing workers to gain the necessary skills to operate new 

processes or technologies, employers may find it necessary to lay off workers with obsolete 

skills. 

5. The overall goal of layoff aversion is to save jobs. Layoff aversion is intended to prevent or 

minimize a potential period of unemployment for employees of companies that have announced 

layoffs or are struggling and at risk for layoffs. Layoff aversion focuses on saving jobs, putting 

people back to work, shortening the length of layoff, and revitalizing communities. 

 

A. Employee Criteria 

a. The worker must be considered for layoff because they do not have marketable, in-

demand skills, unless provided with training.  

b. The new skills can be attained in a reasonable period.  

c. There exists a strong possibility of a job, either with the existing employer or a new 

employer, if new skills are attained. 

B. Employer Criteria 

a. The company remains open but is phasing out a function that will lead to layoffs 

unless the workers can be retrained to perform new functions.  

b. A worker’s job has changing skill requirements because of external economic or 

market forces, significant changes in technology or operating processes, rapidly 

changing industry or occupational job requirements, or emergence of new products.  



   

 

Page 40 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"c. The changing skill requirements are outside of normal skill growth and upkeep that 

would be provided by the employer.  

d. Training programs reasonably prepare workers to address these skill gaps.  

e. The employer demonstrates a commitment to retain employees or otherwise provide 

a tangible benefit to employees who receive IWT. 

C. How to identify “at risk” Employers 

a. The most common "at risk" indicators include declining sales, supply chain issues, 

adverse industry or market trends, changes in management philosophy or 

ownership, and workers lacking in-demand skills.  

b. Establish Early Warning Networks (EWNs); a multi-stakeholder approach to 

identifying companies at risk early enough to be able to mount an effective layoff 

aversion strategy. or  

c. Monitoring trends and understanding the early warning indicators can buy time to 

develop an alternative to job loss. Economic trend monitoring is used to analyze 

industry trends within a region. The function of trend monitoring is to identify firms at 

risk of leaving, or closing, prior to actual decisions by companies to shut down or 

relocate. 

7.5.8.5. Data Entry Requirements 

Incumbent workers being served must be enrolled into either WIOA Adult, WIOA Dislocated Worker, 

Rapid Response, or other special funding source where incumbent worker training is allowable. 

Providers must follow the data entry requirements outlined in TA Memo #34. 

7.6.8.6. Reporting Requirements  

Incumbent workers being served through an IWT strategy are not required to meet WIOA Adult or 

Dislocated Worker eligibility requirements, unless they are co-enrolled as “participants” in one of 

these programs. Unless they receive more than an IWT service, they are not participants for the 

purpose of inclusion in WIOA performance indicator calculations for state outcomes. However, states 

and local areas are still required to report certain data elements on all individuals who receive only 

incumbent worker training. For specific definitions and instructions refer to Section 12 and Attachment 

8 of TEGL 10-16, Change 1. 

7.7.8.7. Monitoring 

It is the responsibility of the Subrecipient to monitor the training provider, employer, and trainees 

during the training period. Monitoring to include, contract requirements of the training provider are 

being provided, performance is acceptable. If not meeting requirements, Subrecipient will consider 

corrective action or appropriate alternative steps for delivering training. In addition, Subrecipient will 

ensure all required paperwork is completed timely, thoroughly, and appropriately tracked. WSW 

suggests scheduled check-ins with Employer and Training Provider to ensure training is delivered as 

https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/ta-memo-34-incumbent-worker-training-data-entry.pdf
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/attach/TEGL/TEGL_10-16-Change1.pdf


   

 

Page 41 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"expected. Subrecipient must review the procurement process used to purchase the training provider. 

The training must be procured by a verified process and justified with a rationale that is reasonable 

and allowable. This can be documented in the employer agreement as required in 7.2.3 – 1b.  



   

 

Page 42 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"8.9. Customized Training 

(To be followed for Adult and Dislocated Worker programs.) 

8.1.9.1. Purpose 

WIOA allows for the use of customized training in accordance with the ESD Policy #5616 Revision 1. 

Subrecipients may competitively procure training contracts to use WIOA Title I funding to pay for 

group training, in lieu of individual training accounts, when the training is otherwise approvable under 

federal and state law and policy. In addition, the training is only allowed if the individual’s rights for 

consumer choice are not superseded. This training option is available for “incumbent workers” or 

“new workers”. Customized training is generally for hiring new or recently hired employees and not 

for retraining existing long-term employees. Incumbent worker training may be used to provide 

training for current employees as a layoff aversion strategy. 

Customized training is training that is designed to meet the specific requirements of an employer 

(including a group of employers), that is conducted with a commitment by the employer to employ an 

individual upon successful completion of the training, and for which the employer pays a significant 

portion of the cost of training (see employer share below). 

Customized training should be considered when available training programs and/or curricula do not 

meet the specific training requirements of employer(s). 

8.2.9.2. Requirements 

A. Customized training must be: 

a. Used to meet the special requirements of an employer or group of employers;  

b. Conducted with a commitment by the employer(s) to employ all individuals upon 

successful completion of the training; and 

c. Paid for, in part, by employers, who must pay a “significant cost” of the training. 

Significant cost is defined below under Employer Share of Training Costs.  

B. Individuals considered for customized training must meet eligibility requirements for Adult or 

Dislocated Worker programs. Employed individuals may be considered for customized training 

under specific conditions. An employed individual being considered for customized training 

must:  

a. Not be earning a self-sufficient wage as determined by the WSW Eligibility Handbook;  

b. Meet the Fair Labor Standards Act requirements for an employer-employee relationship; 

and  

c. Receive training that incorporates new technologies, processes, or procedures; offers 

skills upgrades; provides workplace literacy; or serves other appropriate purposes 

(requires prior approval from WSW Program Manager). 

http://www.wa.gov/esd/1stop/policies/documents/wioa_title1/5616_Rev1_CustomizedTraining_Final.pdf


   

 

Page 43 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08" 

8.2.1.9.2.1. Eligible Employers 

Employer(s) must meet the following requirements to be eligible for training:     

▪ Must demonstrate that the customized training will increase ability to retain or create jobs; 

▪ Must be able to commit to hire participants after successful completion of training; 

▪ Must not have laid off workers and relocated within 120 days of receiving training services;  

▪ The employer must be current in unemployment insurance and workers’ compensation taxes, 

penalties, and/or interest or related payment plan; 

▪ Must be able to contract for customized, short-term, training services (typically less than 9 

months); 

▪ Not have any real, implied, or apparent conflict of interest with the training provider; 

▪ Training provider must be on the State ETPL;  

▪ The quality of the training (e.g., industry-recognized credentials, other credentials or exams 

validated by industry, trade or professional associations or advancement opportunities); and 

▪ Must be classified under targeted industries defined in the Strategic Plans of WSW, CREDC, 

and CEDC. See Local Demand Training Investment List for occupation list and/or Strategic 

Plans for current targeted industries.  

The following factors must be a consideration when determining employer’s eligibility: 

▪ New workers to be trained must have barriers to employment as defined in WIOA Section 

3(24), and how they must describe how they would benefit from this training;  

▪ The number of participants the employer plans to train or retrain; and 

▪ The wage and benefit levels of participants (before and after training);  

Subrecipients must document the factors employer eligibility prior to the training project starting. 

Displacement Restriction:  If an employer has recently relocated and the relocation resulted in any 

employee losing his or her job at the original location, the customized training services may not be 

provided until the company has operated at the new location for 120 days. 

8.2.2.9.2.2. Employer Share of Training Costs 

Employers participating in customized training is required to pay for a “significant portion of the cost of 

the training”. The employer share is based on the size of the workforce (wages paid to the participant 

while in training can be included as part of that share and the share can be provided as cash or in-

kind that is fairly evaluated) as follows: 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList
http://www.swwdc.org/about-swwdc/strategicplan.html
http://www.swwdc.org/about-swwdc/strategicplan.html
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf


   

 

Page 44 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"▪ At least 10 percent of the cost for employers with 50 or fewer employees  

▪ At least 25 percent of the cost for employers with 51 to 100 employees  

▪ At least 50 percent of the cost for employers with more than 100 employees Subrecipients 

must track and document employer cost share contributions.   

If multiple employers share the training, the employer share of training costs will be split 

proportionately between all employers according to number of employees the employer sent. Agreed 

upon costs must be outlined in the agreement and signed by all parties. 

8.3.9.3. Procedures 

Approval Process  

Employers are approved on a case-by-case basis by the WSW contracted Subrecipient based on the 

Priority of Business and Statement of Work. Using the criteria listed, the training approval process 

must be developed by Subrecipient and approved by WSW Program Manager. The following 

proposal documents will be reviewed and decision made by Subrecipient Designee using the formal 

process developed by Subrecipient: 

▪ Scope of Work 

▪ Need for Training 

▪ Training Outline (including deliverables and approximate timeline for training) 

▪ Training Outcomes (skills learned, etc.) 

▪ Benefit to Trainees 

▪ Occupational Classifications and Average Wages of Trainees 

▪ Budget  

Priority of Business Selection 

WSW and/or approved Subrecipient will use the following criteria for ranking priority during approval 

of training proposals: 

1. Training meets the requirement of the funding source; 

2. Economic Development Projects involving a business expansion or retention (existing site 

expansion or relocation to new site within Southwest Washington) or recruited companies 

(within two years of relocation to Clark, Cowlitz, or Wahkiakum Counties); 

3. Training for labor skill sets that are in critical shortage within the region; 

4. Traded Sector small to medium business ($2 million to $20 million annual sales); 

5. Companies that have not previously received subsidized training through WSW or a WSW 

partner within the last two years; 



   

 

Page 45 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"6. Training that supports retention of recently hired employees (within one year of hire) and/or 

directly supports additional job creation within the company; 

7. Companies that agree to abide by the terms and conditions of the grant, including reporting 

and employee documentation; 

8. If applicable, a written union letter of support for training activities involving union positions. 

Subrecipients must document the priority and ranking that was considered in approving a training 

proposal. It is the expectation that if an employer’s proposal meets multiple criteria they are ranked 

higher than a proposal that meets fewer criterions. 

It is the responsibility of the subrecipient to ensure the training provider is in compliance with federal 

and state laws, policies and procedures and listed on the State’s ETPL. 

8.4.9.4. Employers outside of Washington State 

If an employer outside of Washington State requests customized training through SW Washington 

WorkSource Centers, subrecipients must coordinate with their out-of-state counterpart with the 

assistance of the WSW Program Manager. The two states must coordinate on selection of training 

providers by either using the State’s ETPL or use mutually agreed upon criteria to award training 

contract. In addition, a share of training costs must be established based on number of trainees 

determined through negotiations and documented in the training contract. 

8.5.9.5. Monitoring 

It is the responsibility of the Subrecipient to monitor the training provider, employer, and trainees 

during the training period. Monitoring to include, contract requirements of the training provider are 

being provided, performance is acceptable. If not meeting requirements, Subrecipient will consider 

corrective action or appropriate alternative steps for delivering training. In addition, Subrecipient will 

ensure all required paperwork is completed timely, thoroughly, and appropriately tracked. WSW 

suggests scheduled check-ins with Employer and Training Provider to ensure training is delivered as 

expected.  

  



   

 

Page 46 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"9.10. Post-Secondary Tuition Payments 

(To be followed for Youth programs, Adult programs must follow ITA Section 2) 

9.1.10.1. Purpose 

WIOA stipulates fourteen different program elements that Local Workforce Development Councils 

must ensure are offered throughout their service area. Two of those required program elements are 

Occupational Skill Training, which shall include training programs that lead to recognized 

postsecondary credentials that are aligned with in-demand industry sectors or occupations in the local 

area involved and education offered concurrently with and in the same context as workforce 

preparation activities and training for a specific occupation or occupational cluster. One of the various 

ways to offer and support Youth Occupational Skill Education and Training is in the way of tuition 

assistance to include; academic or occupational learning, development of leadership skills, further 

education, or additional training.  

9.2.10.2. Requirements 

Occupational Skill Training for purposes of this policy is defined as any training that will provide a 

participant with an opportunity to enhance their ability to succeed in certain occupations either at 

entry, intermediate, or advance career levels that lead to a recognized credential/certificate. Tuition 

assistance may be available to support Occupational Skill Training with WIOA funds being used if the 

payment is a necessary need to accomplish goals described in the customer’s Individual Service 

Strategy. These tuition funds are not intended to facilitate the acquisition of degrees, diplomas, or 

certificates strictly for the sake of education. Acquisition of tuition funds must have a direct connection 

in preparing the customer for a specific occupation available in the labor market. See covered costs 

below. 

In response to the target industry investment priorities identified in the Strategic Plan, WSW has 

established three occupational categories eligible for tuition assistance. 

WSW authorizes tuition assistance as follows:  

• Demand Occupations:  Tuition assistance may be approved for occupations that WSW has 

determined to be in high demand as listed on the Local Demand Training  Investment List. 

• Balanced Occupations:  Tuition assistance may be approved for occupations that WSW has 

determined to be in demand, but lacks a significant projected growth potential therefore listed 

as “balanced” as listed on the Local Demand Training Investment  List.  

• Not in Demand Occupations:  A limited number of training services may be approved for 

occupations listed as “Not in Demand” if evidence exists that the occupation pays a Self-

Sufficient wage with adequate local demand as determined by WSW. Subrecipients must 

receive approval from WSW Youth Iniatives Manager prior to training start date. 

Eligible Training Providers 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#LocalTrainingInvestmentList
http://workforcesw.org/providers#EligibleTrainingProvidersList


   

 

Page 47 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"WSW authorizes tuition assistance to be paid to providers on the Washington State Eligible Training 

Providers List (ETP). Tuition assistance can only be issued to training provided by an educational 

institution that is on the ETP and for a program also listed on the ETP. This information is posted at:  

http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/.  

WSW, in partnership with the state, will identify training providers whose performance qualifies them 

to receive WIOA funds to train those in need. These include post-secondary educational institutions, 

national apprenticeship programs, community-based organizations, private organizations, other public 

or private providers.  

9.3.10.3. Covered Costs 

WIOA tuition assistance may be used if all other resources have either been exhausted or 

unavailable at the time of the need. Other resources to consider before WIOA funds include but are 

not limited to PELL grants, scholarships, federal financial aid, or other WIOA sources. When it makes 

sense, WSW encourages those over 18 to be co-enrolled with the WIOA Adult Program.    

Tuition assistance is approved to use in the following ways:  

1. One quarter of tuition at a community college. During that quarter, it is the expectation that the 

participant is working towards securing other means of support, such as financial aid, 

scholarships, or other work supports.  

2. One semester class at a University. During that semester, it is the expectation that the 

participant is working towards securing other means of support, such as financial aid, 

scholarships, or other work supports.  

3. A career and technical education course at an accredited school. For example, Certified 

Nursing Assistant or vocational certification. The course must enhance the participant’s 

knowledge and skill in a demand occupation. 

Only required costs associated with approved training programs will be covered. Required costs that 

can be submitted for coverage under tuition assistance are:   

▪ Tuition, enrollment fees, and other fees such as lab and testing required for coursework 

outlined in the required course of study;   

▪ Required textbooks as listed on course syllabi; 

▪ Required supplies and training materials as listed on course syllabi or supply lists; and  

▪ Required tools as listed on course tool lists.  

Optional costs, including tuition and fees for coursework not included in the required course of study; 

textbooks not listed as required on course syllabi; and supplies, training materials, and tools which 

are not required for all participants in the training program, are not covered.  

http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/


   

 

Page 48 of 48 

 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"Participants are required to maintain satisfactory progress in the selected training program. 

Satisfactory progress is defined as: 

▪ Maintaining a grade point average sufficient to graduate from and/or receive certification in 

their approved area of study; and/or 

▪ Completing sufficient credit hours to complete program in the timeframe established; and/or 

▪ Contact with the customer’s case manager must be made at the end of each training segment 

to ensure satisfactory progress is being made, whether that be quarter, class, session, etc. 

Supportive services, if appropriate, shall be delivered pursuant to the WSW’s Supportive Services 

Policy #3021. 

9.4.10.4. Limitations and Guidelines 

The following guidelines are provided to assist in administering tuition assistance: 

1. Subrecipients are authorized to provide tuition assistance up to $2,000 per participant for their 

entire enrollment with the WIOA Youth Program. 

2. For tuition assistance amounts above $2,000, an exception request must be submitted to the 

WSW Youth Initiatives Manager prior to spending over $2,000. 

3. Participant files must adequately document that all tuition assistance is allowable, reasonable, 

justified, and not otherwise available to the customer and show evidence of collaboration, 

when feasible. Assessment of the customer’s need for tuition assistance must also be 

documented in MIS case notes. 

4. Occupational Skills Training and Work Experiences are not allowable expenses during the 

follow up phase of the WIOA Youth Program. 

 

 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies


1 
 

 

 
 

 

 

BUDGET  MEMO   
 

 

DATE:  DECEMBER 5, 2023 

TO:  WSW FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

WSW EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

FROM:  BARRI BLAIR, WSW CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

RE:  WSW 2023‐2024 (PY23) BUDGET REVISION EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2024 

 

The following are highlights of the revised WSW 2023‐2024 (PY23) annual budget. Detailed budget reports and 
worksheets are included in the meeting packet. 

WIOA FUNDING and CONTRACTS 

 
Increased WIOA Formula funding carry‐in, Rapid Response allocation for Dislocated Workers, and a small additional 
allocation from ESD resulted in an 9% increase in available WIOA funding for PY23 after future year reserves and 
holdback for executed contracts was accounted for. The increase in carry‐in was a result of underspending realized 
when actual costs totals for the fiscal year operations and contracts were finalized.    
 

 
 
The WIOA  contracting  budget was increased for PY23 using de‐obligated funds from prior years’ underspent 

contracts. 

 

 

 

 

Item

Proposed 
Budget 
PY23

Approved 
Intitial 
Budget 
PY23

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation
ACP 488,889     516,665     (27,777)      (5%)           

Adult 1,389,157   1,375,725   13,432       1%            

Dislocated Workers 1,219,989   1,006,835   213,154     21%          

Youth 1,540,881   1,349,159   191,722     14%          

Total WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation 4,638,916   4,248,384   390,532     9%            

Proposed 
Budget PY23

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

ADULT New Contracts 886,655         847,169           39,486            5%                 

DISLOCATED WORKER New Contracts 904,277         687,777           216,500          31%               

YOUTH New Contracts 1,040,018       786,565           253,453          32%               

2,830,950       2,321,511        509,439          22%               

ITEM



2 
 

 

 

 

The following table is a summary of current WIOA Formula contracts by category with comparison to the total 

revised contract budget. Youth contracts executed last year for services in the current year are included in the youth 

total. 

 

 

Increased WIOA Formula Funding carry‐in also resulted in an 57.5% increase in dollars available for Operations and 
Reserves after subcontract allowance. 90% of the increase equal to $665,904 is included in reserves for the future 
year. 
 

 
         

NEW FUNDING 

The following sources of funding were added to the revised budget. These figures represent funding for both 

operations and contracting in the current and future years. 

 

TOTAL FUNDING 

Overall funding for the current program year decreased 8% over PY22 and increased 11% over the initial approved 

budget for PY23. 

 

 

 

Adult DW Youth
TOTAL in Contracts 819,859                  813,397                  1,030,469               
Systems Liasons                     112,761                     113,544                       15,411 
Systems Technology                              -                                -                           1,690 
Direct Workforce Development Systems Support                         3,761                         3,787                            578 
Business Services-Quality jobs                       50,317                       50,667                         7,731 
Outreach                       35,825                       36,073                              -   
Participant Training and Career Services                     617,196                     609,326                   1,005,060 
New Contracting  Budget REVISED  886,655 904,277 1,040,018
Contracts budget remaining                       66,796                       90,880                         9,549 

ITEM Proposed Budget 
PY23 Future Years Total

OPIOID NDWG PY23 408,478                    791,522                    1,200,000               
WJI-CGC Sectoral Partnership 228,571                    571,429                    800,000                  
DOL: Future Leaders 97,195                      252,805                    350,000                  
DOC: Incentive 240,088                    411,579                    651,667                  
DOC: Business Serv. & Training 409,434                    701,886                    1,111,320               

Item

Proposed 
Budget PY23

Approved 
Revised Budget 

PY22
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

TOTAL FUNDING 9,410,198       10,260,060       (849,863)     (8%)          8,481,832        928,366      11%             



3 
 

 

EXPENDITURES and RESERVES 

Total expenditures for contracts is up 17% after the increase in carry‐in funding for NEW WIOA contracts and other 

new funding added to the budget. Infrastructure  costs increased 3% attributable to increased WSW costs at the 

NEXT Center. A combination of the loss of contributing partners and increased contractor staff caused the increase.  

A 2% cost of living adjustment for all staff as of January 1, 2024 has been included in the budget.  Also included are 

staff bonuses, reinstated after being removed from the initial budget due to lack of funding. Additional costs related 

to technology updates and required lease accounting changes resulted in a 3% increase in the WSW Coordination and 

Administration costs equal to $68,233. 

Total reserves to be carried forward to PY24 are budgeted at $1,895,291, up 522% from the initial budget. Reserves 

represent current year WIOA funds intended to support operations in the future year and other funds held back from 

multi‐year grant programs which must be self‐supported through the end of their terms.  

 

 

 

 

Item
Proposed 

Budget PY23

Approved 
Revised 
Budget 
PY22

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
Increase

(Decrease) % Change

TOTAL FEDERAL CONTRACTS 5,165,186       5,583,611    (418,425)         (7%)          4,654,395       510,791         11%             
TOTAL NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS 1,317,666       1,218,611    99,055            8%            876,694          440,972         50%             

TOTAL ALL CONTRACTS 6,482,852    6,802,222  (319,370)       (5%)         5,531,089     951,763       17%            
Total Infrastructure Agreements 426,776         298,438       128,338          43%          413,978          12,798           3%               
Total WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570       2,525,075    (24,506)           (1%)          2,432,336       68,233           3%               

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346    2,823,514  103,832        4%          2,846,314     81,032         3%              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198    9,625,735  (215,537)       (2%)         8,377,403     1,032,795    12%            

RESERVES 1,895,291    1,323,944  571,347        43%        304,913        1,590,378    522%          

Year over Year Change from Initial Approved (June 2023) 
Current Year



6

7

8
9
10
11
12
13

14

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
2324
25
26
27
28
29
30
3132
3334
3536
37
38
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
5253
54
55
56
5758
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
7475
98
99100
101102
103

A B C D E F G H I M N O P Q R T U V W X Y Z AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AI AJ

PY23 PROPOSED  REVISED BUDGET - BY PROGRAM
Fiscal Year - July 1, 2023 Through June 30, 2024

Item Pr
op

os
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

PY
23

AC
P

Ad
ul

t

DW Yo
ut

h

TH
RI

VE
 - 

Ec
SA

 
FE

D 
Ro

un
d 

 2

Op
io

id
 N

DW
G 

PY
23

Ca
re

er
 D

W
G 

(W
SI

)

TH
RI

VE
 -E

cS
A 

FE
D 

Ro
un

d 
3

QU
ES

T 
Na

tio
na

l 
DW

 7
57

2-
03

W
JI

-C
GC

 S
ec

to
ra

l 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

Su
m

m
er

w
or

ks
 

DO
L

DO
L 

Fu
tu

re
 

Le
ad

er
s

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Fo
un

da
tio

n

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
Ch

as
e

Ke
y 

Ba
nk

BF
ET

Ot
he

r R
es

er
ve

s

Ci
ty

 o
f V

an
co

uv
er

 -
CD

BG
 fo

r 
Ch

ild
ca

re

Ci
ty

 o
f V

an
co

uv
er

-
Fo

ur
th

 P
la

in
 

Fo
rw

ar
d

Ec
SA

 S
ta

te
 

Ge
ne

ra
l F

un
d 

PY
23

Cl
ar

k 
Co

un
ty

 - 
AR

PA
 R

e-
En

try
 

Fu
nd

in
g

DO
C 

In
ce

nt
ive

DO
C 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Se
rv

. &
 T

ra
in

in
g

N/A N/A N/A N/A 6/30/24 9/30/25 6/30/24 6/30/24 9/30/24 Unexecuted 12/31/25 Unexecuted N/A 9/30/24 N/A N/A N/A 12/31/23 12/31/23 6/30/24 Unexecuted Unexecuted Unexecuted
16.70% 12.35% 12.76% 15.81% 2.16% 2.33% 1.03% 3.47% 5.25% 2.00% 6.53% 3.02% 0.00% 0.96% 0.00% 1.42% 0.41% 0.00% 0.00% 8.66% 1.02% 0.61% 3.50%

FUNDING 3.92% 11.60% 10.45% 12.64% 0.98% 8.37% 2.31% 2.42% 6.81% 5.58% 10.22% 2.44% 0.64% 0.70% 0.03% 1.54% 0.63% 0.28% 0.05% 5.41% 0.70% 4.55% 7.75%
Carry In 5,535,049      232,434      667,184      529,853      809,259      140,559        -               331,139        976,245        -               1,464,617      -            91,341     (0)                 4,115           171,351    69,896         40,000 7,057      -            -             -            -            
New Funding 8,799,269      329,413      995,148      967,386      1,002,191    -               1,200,000      -               346,724        -               800,000        -               350,000      -          100,000         -              49,625      20,000         0 -         775,794     100,000      651,667      1,111,320   
Holdbacks for Future Contracts (3,248,515)     -             (221,664)     (226,069)     -             -               (666,609)       -               -               (138,583)       (424,821)       (622,213)       (21,250)      -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            (20,000)       (380,891)    (526,415)    
Holdbacks for Future WSW Operations (RESERVES) (1,895,291)     (72,959)       (149,272)     (145,108)     (298,565)     -               (124,913)       -               -               (40,000)         (146,607)       (224,555)       (231,555)    (41,341)    (7,000)           -              (139,384)   (37,872)        0 -         -            (30,000)       (30,688)      (175,472)    
Operator Cost Reimbursement per IFA 219,685         97,761        93,927        27,996        -            

TOTAL FUNDING 9,410,198      488,889      1,389,157    1,219,989    1,540,881    140,559        408,478        331,139        346,724        797,661        228,571        617,849        97,195       50,000     93,000           4,115           81,592      52,024         40,000       7,057      775,794     50,000        240,088      409,434      

EXPENDITURES 4,638,916         Check figure 2,870,982        7,509,898     Check figure 280,732             Check Figure 872,851           1,522,373        
FEDERAL AND NON FEDERAL CONTRACTS
Pre-Existing Contracts 1,711,268      -             362,564      168,187      38,038        57,692          -               301,097        732,519        -               -            -          -                4,115           -           -              40,000 7,057      -            -             -            -            
New Contracts 8,020,099      -             886,655      904,277      1,040,018    19,711          1,006,800      -               245,257        50,000          594,750        1,048,832      30,000       50,000     65,000           -              40,000      40,000         0 -         522,232     40,000        603,077      833,490      

Future Year Portion of New Contract (3,248,515)     -             (221,664)     (226,069)     -             -               (666,609)       -               -               (138,583)       (424,821)       (622,213)       (21,250)      -          -                -              -           -              0 -         -            (20,000)       (380,891)    (526,415)    
TOTAL FEDERAL AND NON FEDERAL CONTRACTS 6,482,852      -             1,027,555    846,395      1,078,056    77,403          340,191        301,097        245,257        643,935        169,929        426,619        8,750         50,000     65,000           4,115           40,000      40,000         40,000       7,057      522,232     20,000        222,186      307,075      

DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,952,005         Check fig 1,795,587        5,156,436     199,115             589,289           771,476           1,071,494        

Infrastructure Agreements
Allocated Costs WSW Share 426,776         -             38,855        42,121        165,724      855               6,686            12,036          16,105          34,003          2,861            79,560          -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         23,278       522            -            4,172         
Total Infrastructure Agreements 426,776         -             38,855        42,121        165,724      855               6,686            12,036          16,105          34,003          2,861            79,560          -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         23,278       522            -            4,172         

WSW Coordination and Administration
Personnel - wages and benefits 2,077,421      -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Professional fees - accounting, legal, consulting 68,950           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
IT: Professional support 40,200           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
IT:Licensing, annual fees,software 34,801           -             -             -             648             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Supplies-general office & kitchen 7,377             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               1,199            1,373         -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Telephone 12,500           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Postage, print,copy, rentals 200               -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Occupancy 134,340         -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
External Printing & publications 750               -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Individual Travel
    Local travel & mileage 10,000           -             -             -             -             -               600               -               -               -               -               1,761            -            -          -                -              -           -              0 -         2,639         -             -            -            
    Long distance travel 5,000             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               1,500            -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              0 -         1,000         -             -            -            
Individual Travel 15,000           -             -             -             -             -               600               -               1,500            -               -               1,761            -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         3,639         -             -            -            
Conferences & Meetings

Individual Industry and CBO 9,500             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Group Conference Events including Travel -                -             2,314          2,330          356             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Washington Workforce Association (WWA) 13,000           -             6,017          6,059          924             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
National Association of Workforce Boards (NAWB) 9,000             -             4,166          4,194          640             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Prepaid NAWB Registration and Flights -                -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            

Conferences & Meetings 31,500           -             12,497        12,583        1,920          -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Insurance 19,464           -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Furniture & equipment 20,870           20,870        -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Local meeting support 6,000             -             1,389          1,398          213             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Memberships & Subscriptions 23,696           -             6,387          6,432          981             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Staff Training 7,500             -             -             -             -             -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -            -          -                -              -           -              -            -         -            -             -            -            
Total WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570      20,870        20,272        20,413        3,763          -               600               -               1,500            -               -               2,960            1,373         -          -                -              -           -              -            -         3,639         -             -            -            

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346      20,870        59,127        62,534        169,486      855               7,286            12,036          17,605          34,003          2,861            82,520          1,373         -          -                -              -           -              0 -         26,917       522            -            4,172         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198      20,870        1,086,682    908,928      1,247,542    78,257          347,477        313,133        262,862        677,938        172,790        509,139        10,123       50,000     65,000           4,115           40,000      40,000         40,000 7,057      549,149     20,522        222,186      311,248      
Net Revenue Less Expenditures Before Admin Transfer (0)                  468,019      302,475      311,061      293,339      62,301          61,001          18,006          83,862          119,723        55,782          108,710        87,072       (0)            28,000           (0)                41,592      12,024         0 (0)           226,645     29,478        17,902       98,186       

WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation

FEDERAL FUNDING

Private and Unrestricted Other Government Grants

NON-FEDERAL FUNDING

Other Federal Grants

https://workforcesw.sharepoint.com/sites/WSW-Fiscal-NEW/Shared Documents/Fiscal PY23 Budget Only/Mid-Year Revision/Board Copies/4 EB FINAL 11.22.23  With  WIOA HOLDBACK 11/25/202311:39 AM



6
7

8

9
10
11
12

13

14

15
16
3536
4142
5253
5455
56
64
65
7475
7677
7879
80
81
100
106
117118
119120
121
129
139140
141142
143
165166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176177
178
179
180
181182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
196
219220
221222
223
224
227
228

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N P Q R S

PY23 PROPOSED BUDGET (Revised) -  COMPARISON
Fiscal Year - July 1, 2023 Through June 30, 2024

Item
Proposed 

Budget PY23
% of
Total

Approved 
Revised 

Budget PY22
% of
Total

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

Approved 
Intitial Budget 

PY23
% of
Total

Increase
(Decrease) % Change

FUNDING
FEDERAL FUNDING

Total WIOA: Regional Resource Allocation 4,638,916       49%      6,560,613        64%      (1,921,697)      (29%)            4,248,384        64%        390,532           9%                
Total WIOA Governer Discretionary Funds 487,283         5%       171,350          2%       315,933          184%            520,002           7%          (32,719)           (6%)               
Total Other Federal Grants 2,480,895       26%      1,854,884        18%      626,011          34%             2,073,787        23%        407,108           20%              

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDING 7,607,093    81%    8,586,846     84%    (979,753)       (11%)           6,842,172      94%       764,921         11%              

NON-FEDERAL FUNDING
Total Private and Unrestricted 280,732         3%       458,062          4%       (177,331)         (39%)            619,660           2%          (338,928)         (55%)             

Total Other Government Funding 1,522,373       16%      1,215,152        12%      307,221          25%             1,020,000        4%          502,373           49%              
TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDING 1,803,104    19%    1,673,214     16%    129,890        8%               1,639,660      6%         163,444         10%              

TOTAL FUNDING 9,410,198    100%  10,260,060   100%  (849,863)       (8%)             8,481,832      100%     928,366         11%              

EXPENDITURES
FEDERAL CONTRACTS

Total WIOA Contracts 2,952,005       31%      4,081,521        43%      (1,129,516)      (28%)            2,692,613        44%        259,392           10%              
Total Governer Discretionary Contracts 322,660         3%       87,516            1%       235,144          269%            363,639           5%          (40,979)           (11%)             
Total Other Federal Contracts 1,890,521       20%      1,414,573        15%      475,948          34%             1,598,143        19%        292,379           18%              

TOTAL FEDERAL CONTRACTS 5,165,186    55%    5,583,611     58%    (418,425)       (7%)             4,654,395      69%       510,791         11%              

NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS
Total Private and Unrestricted Contracts 199,115         2%       211,444          2%       (12,329)          (6%)              231,694           2%          (32,579)           (14%)             
Total Other Government Contracts 1,118,551       12%      1,007,167        11%      111,384          11%             645,000           4%          473,551           73%              

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS 1,317,666    14%    1,218,611     13%    99,055          8%               876,694         5%         440,972         50%              

DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS
Total Infrastructure Agreements ** 426,776         5%       298,438          3%       128,338          43%             413,978           3%          12,798            3%                
WSW Coordination and Administration
Personnel - wages and benefits 2,077,421       22%      1,971,467        21%      105,954          5%               2,028,221        17%        49,200            2%                
Professional fees - accounting, legal, consulting 68,950           1%       95,150            1%       (26,200)          (28%)            68,950            1%          -                  0%
IT: Professional support 40,200           0%       37,200            0%       3,000             8%               33,600            0%          6,600              20%              
IT:Licensing, annual fees,software 34,801           0%       64,635            1%       (29,834)          (46%)            41,738            1%          (6,937)             (17%)             
Supplies-general office & kitchen 7,377             0%       10,010            0%       (2,633)            (26%)            7,377              0%          -                  0%
Telephone 12,500           0%       11,436            0%       1,064             9%               12,500            0%          -                  0%
Postage, print,copy, rentals 200                0%       900                0%       (700)               (78%)            750                 0%          (550)                (73%)             
Occupancy 134,340         1%       123,420          1%       10,920            9%               123,420           1%          10,920            9%                
External Printing & publications 750                0%       3,000              0%       (2,250)            (75%)            750                 0%          -                  0%
Individual Travel
    Local travel & mileage 10,000           0%       22,350            0%       (12,350)          (55%)            10,000            0%          -                  0%
    Long distance travel 5,000             0%       7,500              0%       (2,500)            (33%)            5,000              0%          -                  0%
Individual Travel 15,000           0%       29,850            0%       (14,850)          (50%)            15,000            0%          -                  0%
Conferences & Meetings:

Individual Industry and CBO 9,500             0%       9,500              0%       -                  0% 9,500              0%          -                  0%
Group Conference Events including Travel -                  0%

Washington Workforce Association (WWA) 13,000           0%       12,000            0%       1,000             8%               13,000             0% -                  0%
National Association of Workforce Boards (NAWB) 9,000             0%       18,000            0%       (9,000)            (50%)            -                 0%          9,000              100%             
Prepaid NAWB Registration and Flights -                 0% -                  0% -                 100%            -                  0% -                  0%

Conferences & Meetings total 31,500           0%       39,500            0%       (8,000)            (20%)            22,500            0%          9,000              40%              
Insurance 19,464           0%       18,538            0%       926                5%               19,464            0%          -                  0%
Furniture & equipment 20,870           0%       41,099            0%       (20,228)          (49%)            20,870            0%          -                  0%
Local meeting support 6,000             0%       5,350              0%       650                12%             6,000              0%          -                  0%
Memberships & Subscriptions 23,696           0%       23,520            0%       176                1%               23,696            0%          -                  0%
Staff Training 7,500             0%       50,000            1%       (42,500)          (85%)            7,500              0%          -                  0%
Total WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570       27%      2,525,075        26%      (24,506)          (1%)              2,432,336        23%        68,233            3%                
Total Special Projects & Prepaids or allowance for unders -                 0% (47,928)           (1%)      -                  0% -                 (0%)         -                  0%

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346    31%    2,775,586     29%    103,832        3.74%         2,846,314      26%       81,032           3%                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198    100%  9,577,807     100%  (215,537)       (2%)             8,377,403      100%     1,032,795      12%              
FUNDING LESS EXPENDITURES* (0)                  682,253         104,429         (104,429)       (100%)          
* PY23 revised budget intentially nets to zero - see future period holdback for reserve total
**Expected IFA expense offset contributions from partners moved to new funding section of the (proposed) report.

Change from Initial Approved (June 2023) Current YearYear over Year

https://workforcesw.sharepoint.com/sites/WSW-Fiscal-NEW/Shared Documents/Fiscal PY23 Budget Only/Mid-Year Revision/Board Copies/4 EB FINAL 11.22.23  With  WIOA HOLDBACK 11/25/202311:35 AM



7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14

15
16
17
24
25
32
33
34
35
36
41
42
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
68
69
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
92
100
102
103
108
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
133
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
154
155
156
157
158
159
160

B C D E F G H I J K L M

PY23 PROPOSED BUDGET (Revised) - BY YEAR
Fiscal Year - July 1, 2023 Through June 30, 2024

Item
Proposed 

Budget PY23
% of
Total  Future Years

% of
Total Total

FUNDING
FEDERAL FUNDING

Total WIOA - Carry In 2,238,729       24%     - 0% 2,238,729 

Total WIOA - New Funding 2,400,187       26%     1,113,637           22% 3,513,824 

Net WIOA Funding Available 4,638,916     49%     1,113,637         22%     5,752,553           

Total WIOA Governer Discretionary Funds 487,283          5%       - 0% 487,283 

Total Other Federal Grants 2,480,895       26%     2,641,106           51% 5,122,001 

Net Federal Grants - Other 2,968,177     32%     2,641,106         51%     5,609,284           

NET FEDERAL FUNDING 7,607,093     81%     3,754,743         73%     11,361,837         

NON-FEDERAL FUNDING
Total Private and Unrestricted 280,732          3%       225,597 4%      506,329 

Total Other Government Funding 1,522,373       16%     1,163,465           23%     2,685,838 

NET NON-FEDERAL 1,803,104     19%     1,389,062         27%     3,192,167           

NET FUNDING AVAILABLE 9,410,198     100%    5,143,806         100%   14,554,004         

EXPENDITURES
FEDERAL CONTRACTS

Total WIOA Pre-Existing Contracts 568,788          6%       - 0% 568,788 
Total WIOA New Contracts 2,383,217       25%     447,733 9% 2,830,950 
Net WIOA Contract Expenditures 2,952,005     31%     447,733            9%      3,399,738           

Total Governer Discretionary Contracts 322,660          3%       - 0% 322,660 
Total Other Federal Grants 1,890,521       20%     1,873,477           36% 3,763,998 

Net Federal Contracts 2,213,181     24%     1,873,477         36%     4,086,658           

NET FEDERAL CONTRACTS 5,165,186     55%     2,321,210         45%     7,486,396           

NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS
Total Private and Unrestricted Contracts 199,115          2%       - 0% 199,115 
Total Other Government Contracts 1,118,551       12%     927,305 18% 2,045,856 

NET NON-FEDERAL CONTRACTS 1,317,666     14%    927,305            18% 2,244,971           

DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS
Infrastructure Agreements 426,776          5%       N/A  0% 426,776 

WSW Coordination and Admin 2,500,570       27%     N/A  0% 2,500,570 

TOTAL DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS 2,927,346     31%    - 0% 2,927,346           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,410,198     100%  3,248,515         63% 12,658,713         

Reserves (0) 1,895,291 1,895,291           
Initial Reserves: 304,913              
Change: 522% 1,590,378           

https://workforcesw.sharepoint.com/sites/WSW-Fiscal-NEW/Shared Documents/Fiscal PY23 Budget Only/Mid-Year Revision/Board Copies/4 EB FINAL 11.22.23  With  WIOA HOLDBACK  
11/22/2023

37%


	12052023 Executive-Finance Committee Packet
	12052023 Executive-Finance Committee Meeting Agenda
	10252023 WSW Executive Committee MinutesDRAFT
	Exec Contract Memo -Dec 2023 
	December Policy Memo
	DRAFT Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 08.16
	WSW 12.5.23 Budget Memo
	WSW By Program
	WSW Comparative Detail
	WSW Overall Summary
	WSW Quarterly Fiscal Report Memo Q1 PY23 9.30.23
	WSW Potential Funding for PY23 UPDATE Q1 PY23
	12122023 WSW Board Meeting Agenda DRAFT

	3042 Youth Incentives Policy.DRAFT
	Training Policy Handbook WSW Rev 11.DRAFT
	WSW 12.5.23 Budget Memo
	WSW By Program
	WSW Comparative Detail
	WSW Overall Summary

